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The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

1

These consolidated financial statements are originally issued in Indonesian language.

PT MATAHARI PUTRA PRIMA Tbk AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31, 2009
With Comparative Figures for December 31, 2008

(Expressed in millions of Indonesian rupiah, except share data)

2008
Notes 2009 (As Restated, Note 3)

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 2c,2r,4,33 2,252,173 1,742,666
Short-term investments 2d,2r,5,33

- Third parties 94,368 359,826
- Related party 2x,8 1,070,000 812,000

Accounts receivable 2e,6
Trade 30,993 45,478
Others - net 7,11
- Third parties 135,967 643,757
- Related parties 2x,8 968 2,133

Merchandise inventories 2f,6,7 1,171,805 983,008
Prepaid taxes 17 111,782 18,262
Prepaid expenses 2g,2h

- Third parties 133,175 130,180
- Related parties 2x,8 15,135 15,302

Option/forward contract assets 2r,2s,22,33 - 286,550
Other current assets 49,873 42,348

Total Current Assets 5,066,239 5,081,510

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Due from related parties - net 2e,2x,8 9,447 9,283
Deferred tax assets - net 2t,17 50,423 110,166
Investments in associated companies 2d,2x,8,9 31,500 87,593
Other long-term investments 2d,2r,10 174,709 123,187
Property and equipment 2i,2k,2l ,2x,6,

8,11,21,35
Carrying value 4,000,233 3,585,871
Accumulated depreciation (1,821,740) (1,657,104)
Allowance for possible loss from

disposal of property and equipment - (24,897)

Net 2,178,493 1,903,870
Rental advances 12,35

- Third parties 1,377,785 847,212
- Related parties 2x,8 610,693 286,433

Prepaid long-term rent - net 2h,13
- Third parties 564,206 615,973
- Related parties 2x,8 150,248 162,971

Advances for purchase of
property and equipment 14
- Third parties 59,747 159,119
- Related parties 2x,8 - 118,013

Other non-current assets - net 2i,2j,2l,2m,
2x,8,35 286,654 295,399

Total Non-current Assets 5,493,905 4,719,219

TOTAL ASSETS 10,560,144 9,800,729
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These consolidated financial statements are originally issued in Indonesian language.

PT MATAHARI PUTRA PRIMA Tbk AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (continued)

December 31, 2009
With Comparative Figures for December 31, 2008

(Expressed in millions of Indonesian rupiah, except share data)

2008
Notes 2009 (As Restated, Note 3)

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable

Trade 15 1,294,678 1,191,752
Others 2q,2r,5,

16,33 184,852 459,305
Taxes payable 17 43,616 45,295
Accrued expenses 2u,18,32 566,481 472,353
Notes payable - net 2n,2o,2r,

19,33 - 1,303,092
Current maturities of long-term debts:

Bank loans 20,35,38 1,011,667 74,800
Bonds payable - net 1b,2n,2o,

11,21 - 441,640
Others 2h,2r,33 2,269 9,625

Swap contract liabilities 2r,2s,22,33 - 495,230
Current portion of deferred gain on

asset sale and lease transactions 2k,11 41,431 38,362

Total Current Liabilities 3,144,994 4,531,454

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Due to related parties - net 2x,8 5,520 3,143
Deferred tax liabilities - net 2t,17 - 8,888
Notes payable - net 2n,2o,2r,

19,33 1,788,211 -
Long-term debts - net of current maturities:

Bank loans 20,35 903,333 1,462,850
Bonds payable - net 1b,2n,2o,21 521,807 -
Others 2h,2r,33 4,460 4,699

Deferred gain on asset sale and lease
transactions - net of current portion 2k,11 307,996 349,427

Other non-current liabilities 2r,2u,32,33 322,796 233,435

Total Non-current Liabilities 3,854,123 2,062,442

MINORITY INTEREST 2b 93,929 55,631

Total Liabilities 7,093,046 6,649,527
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PT MATAHARI PUTRA PRIMA Tbk AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (continued)

December 31, 2009
With Comparative Figures for December 31, 2008

(Expressed in millions of Indonesian rupiah, except share data)

2008
Notes 2009 (As Restated, Note 3)

STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Capital stock - Rp500 par value

Authorized - 10,800,000,000 shares
Issued and fully paid - 4,721,073,575 shares

in 2009 and 4,711,922,000 shares
in 2008 1b,23 2,360,537 2,355,961

Additional paid-in capital - net 2p,24 (17,537) (21,198)
Difference in changes in equity transactions

of Subsidiar ies - net 1c,2b,10 (85,743) (136,968)
Pro forma capital arising from Restructuring

Transaction of Entities under Common Control 3 - 43,601
Retained earnings

Appropriated 34 20,000 18,000
Unappropriated 1,313,077 1,015,042

Treasury stock 2p,23 (123,236) (123,236)

Stockholders’ Equity - Net 3,467,098 3,151,202

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY 10,560,144 9,800,729
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PT MATAHARI PUTRA PRIMA Tbk AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Year ended December 31, 2009
With Comparative Figures for the Year ended December 31, 2008

(Expressed in millions of Indonesian rupiah, except for net income per share)

2008
Notes 2009 (As Restated, Note 3)

SALES FROM DIRECT PURCHASE AND
OTHER TRADE REVENUE 2q,25 8,758,719 7,738,485

CONSIGNMENT SALES 2q,26 5,027,934 4,238,885
COST OF CONSIGNMENT SALES 2q,27 3,506,196 2,949,752

COMMISSIONS FROM CONSIGNMENT SALES 1,521,738 1,289,133

NET SALES 10,280,457 9,027,618

COST OF SALES 2f,2i,2q,
11,28 6,724,380 5,903,463

GROSS PROFIT 3,556,077 3,124,155

OPERATING EXPENSES
Selling 2h,2q,2x,

8,29,35 1,109,296 937,709
General and administrative 2i,2m,2q,

2u,2x,8,
11,19,20,
21,30,32 1,942,508 1,695,147

Total Operating Expenses 3,051,804 2,632,856

OPERATING INCOME 504,273 491,299

OTHER CHARGES (INCOME)
Interest expense and other financing

cost - net 2x,4,5,8,18,
19,20,21,31 263,868 175,095

Others - net 2b,2d,2i,2j,
2r,2s,2x,5,
8,9,11,19,
21,22 (132,234) 364,586

Other Charges - Net 131,634 539,681

EQUITY IN NET INCOME (LOSS) OF
INVESTEES - Net 2d,9 1,295 (22,188)

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX 373,934 (70,570)

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (BENEFIT) - Net 2t,17
Current 26,557 35,571
Deferred 50,855 (109,704)

Net 77,412 (74,133)

INCOME BEFORE MINORITY INTEREST AND
EFFECT OF PRO FORMA ADJUSTMENTS 296,522 3,563

MINORITY INTEREST IN NET LOSS
OF SUBSIDIARIES 2b 2,364 3,230

EFFECT OF PRO FORMA ADJUSTMENTS 3 1,149 3,704

NET INCOME 300,035 10,497

NET INCOME PER SHARE 2w 66 2
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PT MATAHARI PUTRA PRIMA Tbk AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended December 31, 2009
With Comparative Figures for the Year ended December 31, 2008

(Expressed in millions of Indonesian rupiah)

2008
Notes 2009 (As Restated, Note 3)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Collection from sales 13,815,095 12,028,146
Cash received from rental income 60,916 68,139
Cash paid for:

Purchase of merchandise inventories including
payment for cost of consignment (10,774,226) (8,711,361)

Rentals (884,046) (607,721)
Salaries and wages (829,057) (783,272)
Other selling expenses (341,740) (212,293)

Cash received from operations 1,046,942 1,781,638
Decrease (increase) in other receivables 558,443 (514,206)
Corporate Income Tax (18,159) (31,581)
Other income 346,759 366,183
Other expenses (704,039) (848,960)

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 1,229,946 753,074

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of short-term investments 1,825,920 90,452
Proceeds from sale of assets from Restructuring

Transaction of Entities under Common Control 210,834 -
Proceeds from sale of investments in associated

companies - net 52,001 -
Decrease (increase) in other non-current assets 25,621 (18,835)
Decrease (increase) in other current assets 10,175 (4,980)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 11 7,140 8,234
Proceeds from sale of other long term investments 100 -
Increase in short-term investments (1,840,203) (827,780)
Increase in rental advances (891,600) (669,256)
Decrease in other payables from the refund of

escrow fund (306,033) -
Increase in advances for purchase of property and

equipment (277,995) (339,684)
Acquisitions of property and equipment 11 (247,196) (193,258)
Cash dividend received from associated company - 5,000

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (1,431,236) (1,950,107)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase in bank loans 2,070,043 1,265,670
Proceeds from issuance of notes 1,091,975 -
Proceeds from issuance of bonds 528,000 -
Interest income 351,173 233,763
Proceeds from warrant conversion into capital stock 8,237 -
Increase (decrease) in amount due to related parties 2,377 (1,784)
Proceeds from Limited Public Offerings 709 -
Payment of bank loans (1,692,693) (593,370)
Interest expense and other financing cost (609,232) (392,850)
Payments and buy-back of notes and the settlement

of related option/swap (553,820) (277,235)
Payments and buy-back of bonds (443,000) (7,000)
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PT MATAHARI PUTRA PRIMA Tbk AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (continues)

Year ended December 31, 2009
With Comparative Figures for the Year ended December 31, 2008

(Expressed in millions of Indonesian rupiah)

2008
Notes 2009 (As Restated, Note 3)

Payments relating to Limited Public Offerings (18,918) -
Payment of notes issuance cost (13,672) -
Payment of bonds issuance cost (7,882) -
Cash dividend paid by Subsidiary to minority

stockholders (2,500) -
Cash dividend paid by the Company 34 - (51,903)

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities 710,797 175,291

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS 509,507 (1,021,742)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 4 1,742,666 2,764,408

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR 4 2,252,173 1,742,666

Supplemental cash flows information:

Transactions not affecting cash flows:
Reclassification of advance for purchase of

property and equipment to property and
equipment 516,043 366,549

Reclassification of rental advances to
prepaid rent 34,463 300,977
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PT MATAHARI PUTRA PRIMA Tbk AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended December 31, 2009
With Comparative Figures for the Year ended December 31, 2008

(Expressed in millions of Indonesian rupiah and thousands of foreign currencies,
except share data/unit)

8

1. GENERAL

a. Company’s Establishment

PT Matahari Putra Prima Tbk (“the Company”) was established in the Republic of Indonesia on
March 11, 1986 based on notarial deed No. 30 dated March 11, 1986 of Budiarti Karnadi, S.H. The
deed of the Company’s establishment was published in Supplement No. 2954 of State Gazette
No. 73 dated September 10, 1991. The Company’s articles of association has been amended
several times, the latest amendment of which is based on notarial deed No. 39 dated August 8,
2008 of Ny. Poerbaningsih Adi Warsito, S.H. concerning the amendment and restatement of
articles of association in accordance to Corporate Law No. 40 year 2007. This amendment has
been approved by the Ministry of Justice and Human Right of the Republic of Indonesia in its
decision letter No. AHU-88903.AH.01.02.TH2008 dated November 21, 2008.

The Company and Subsidiaries operate (i) a chain of stores which sell such items as clothes,
accessories, bags, shoes, cosmetics, electrical equipment, toys, stationery, books, drugs and daily
needs, and (ii) family entertainment centers known as Time Zone. The Company started
commercial operations in 1986.

The Company’s head office is located in Menara Matahari 20th Floor, No. 7 Boulevard Palem
Raya, Lippo Karawaci - Tangerang, West Java.

As of December 31, 2009, the Company, PT Matahari Super Ekonomi and PT Matahari
Department Store Tbk operate stores in 101 locations, while PT Matahari Graha Fantasi operates
72 permanent family entertainment centers and 41 non-permanent family entertainment centers,
PT Times Prima Indonesia operates 16 stores, PT Prima Gerbang Persada operates 1 mall and
PT Prima Cipta Lestari operates 9 restaurants and outlets. All of these stores, family entertainment
centers, mall and restaurants are located in Jakarta and other cities in Indonesia.

b. Company’s Public Offerings

On November 29, 1992, the Company’s Registration Statement to offer its Initial Public Offering of
shares was declared effective. In December 1992, the Company listed all of its shares on the
Jakarta Stock Exchange and the Surabaya Stock Exchange, which are now merged as the
Indonesia Stock Exchange.

On June 9, 1995, September 11, 1996 and October 13, 1997, the Company’s Registration
Statements to offer its First, Second and Third Limited Public Offerings, respectively, with pre-
emptive rights to stockholders, totalling 75,166,500 (at Rp1,400 per share), 225,499,500 (at
Rp1,000 per share) and 1,803,996,000 (at Rp500 per share) new shares, respectively, were
declared effective. The Company listed all such new shares on the Jakarta Stock Exchange and
the Surabaya Stock Exchange.

Based on the letter No. S-1068/PM/2004 dated April 28, 2004 of the Capital Market and Financial
Institution Supervisory Agency (“BAPEPAM-LK”), the Company’s Registration Statement to offer
its Second Matahari Bonds and First Matahari Syariah Ijarah Bonds totalling Rp300,000 and
Rp150,000, respectively, to the public on the Surabaya Stock Exchange (Note 21) was declared
effective.

On December 27, 2006, the Company’s Registration Statement to offer its Fourth Limited Public
Offering with pre-emptive rights to stockholders totalling 2,005,928,000 (at Rp500 per share) new
shares and a maximum of 877,593,500 Series I warrants, was declared effective. The Company
listed all such new shares on the Jakarta Stock Exchange and the Surabaya Stock Exchange
(Note 23).
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1. GENERAL (continued)

b. Company’s Public Offerings (continued)

Based on the letter No. S-2469/BL/2009 dated March 31, 2009 of BAPEPAM-LK, the Company’s
Registration Statement to offer its Third Matahari Bonds and Second Matahari Sukuk Ijarah with a
total maximum amount of Rp350,000 and Rp250,000, respectively, to the public on the Indonesia
Stock Exchange (Note 21) was declared effective.

c. Structure of the Company and Subsidiaries

As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the structure of the Company and the Subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “the Companies”) is as follows:

Percentages
Start of of Ownership * Total Assets

Location of Nature of Commercial
Subsidiaries Operations Business Operations 2009 2008 2009 2008

Direct ownership
PT Matahari Department

Store Tbk (“PT MDS”)
(formerly PT Pacific
Utama Tbk) Tangerang, West Java Retail business 1982 90.76 - 1,516,268 59,360

PT Matahari Super
Ekonomi (“PT MSE”) Tangerang, West Java Retail business 1994 100.00 100.00 5,678 15,545

Matahari International
Finance Company B.V.
(“MIFCO”)

Rotterdam,
Netherlands Financing business 1996 100.00 100.00 6,020 7,163

PT Nadya Putra Investama
(“PT NPI”) Tangerang, West Java General trading 1998 100.00 100.00 603,246 826,388

PT Taraprima Reksabuana
(“PT TPRB”) Jakarta

Sale and marketing
of mineral water 1998 100.00 100.00 17,890 14,590

PT Matahari Kafe
Nusantara (“PT MKN”) Tangerang, West Java Restaurant 2001 100.00 100.00 226 226

Matahari Finance B.V.
(“MF”)

Amsterdam,
Netherlands Financing business 2006 100.00 100.00 37,662 2,177,864

PT Times Prima Indonesia
(“PT TPI”) Tangerang, West Java

Services and general
trading 2008 100.00 100.00 58,568 24,210

PT Prima Cipta Lestari
(“PT Prima”) Tangerang, West Java Restaurant 2009 100.00 100.00 65,318 9,735

Matahari International B.V.
(“MIBV”)

Amsterdam,
Netherlands Financing business 2009 100.00 - 1,981,275 -

PT Matahari Mega
Swalayan (“PT MMS”) Tangerang, West Java General trading - 100.00 100.00 5,192 5,010

PT Matahari Mega Toserba
(“PT MMT”) Tangerang, West Java Retail business - 100.00 100.00 2,254 2,255

PT Matahari Boston
Drugstore (“PT MBD”) Tangerang, West Java Drugstore - 100.00 100.00 2,362 2,360

Prime Connection Limited
(“PCL”) British Virgin Islands Investment company - 100.00 100.00 5 5

Brighter Limited (“BL”) British Virgin Islands Investment company - 100.00 100.00 3,193 8,238

PT Matahari Pacific
(“PT MP”) Tangerang, West Java Trading and services - 100.00 100.00 25,039 25,069

PT Matahari Graha Fantasi
(“PT MGF”) Jakarta

Family
entertainment 1995 50.01 50.01 170,479 165,563

Indirect Ownership
PT Asri Agungpermai

(“PT AAP”, through
PT MDS) Jakarta General trading 1991 99.96 - 1 -

Matahari Department Store
(Shenzhen) Limited
(“MDS”, through BL) China Retail business 2005 100.00 100.00 2,348 7,245

Tristar Capital Limited
(“Tristar”, through
PT NPI) Labuan, Malaysia Investment company 2007 100.00 100.00 330,898 615,879

PT Prima Gerbang Persada
(“PT PGP”, through
PT NPI and PT MSE) Jakarta

Services, general
trade and
agribusiness 2009 100.00 100.00 179,686 170,642

Bright Regent Corporation
(“BRC”, through BL) Hong Kong Investment company - 100.00 100.00 2,755 7,720

Merrill Investment Limited
(“MI”, through
PT NPI)** Labuan, Malaysia Investment company - 100.00 100.00 4,271 4,931

Matahari Trading
(Shenzhen) Limited
(“MTL”, through BL)*** China General trading - 100.00 100.00 - -
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1. GENERAL (continued)

c. Structure of the Company and Subsidiaries (continued)

Percentages
Start of of Ownership * Total Assets

Location of Nature of Commercial
Subsidiaries Operations Business Operations 2009 2008 2009 2008

Grandbright Corporation
Limited (“GCL”,
through BL) Hong Kong Investment company - 100.00 100.00 0.001 0.001

PT Matahari Dana Prima
(“PT MDP”, through
PT NPI) Jakarta

Consumer financing
business - 99.99 99.99 1,927 1,927

* including indirect ownership
** At the time this consolidated report is released, this company had been struck off from its registration in Labuan, Malaysia.
*** As of October 7, 2008, this subsidiary is no longer registered in the National Organization Institution Code Management Center in China.

On February 1, 2008, the Company and PT NPI acquired 99% and 1% ownership interests,
respectively, in PT TPI. PT TPI operates in the bookstore business.

On May 2, 2008, the Company and PT NPI acquired 99% and 1% ownership interests,
respectively, in PT Prima.

On August 22, 2008, the Company and PT NPI acquired 99% and 1% ownership interests,
respectively, in PT MP.

On June 30, 2009, the Company acquired 100% ownership interests in MIBV (formerly Barthelo
Shipyard Support B.V.).

On November 25, 2009, the Company invested in PT MDS (formerly PT Pacific Utama Tbk)
representing ownership interests of 90.76% (Note 35). This transaction fell under restructuring
transactions between entities under common control, and recorded in accordance with Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards 38 (Revised 2004).

As of December 31, 2009, PT MMS, PT MMT, PT MBD, PCL, BL, PT MP, BRC, MI, MTL, GCL
and PT MDP have not started commercial operations.

d. Employees, the Board of Commissioners and Directors and Audit Committee

As of December 31, 2009, the members of the Board of Commissioners and the Board of Directors
based on a resolution at the Company’s Stockholders’ Annual General Meeting held on
April 24, 2009 which was notarized under deed No. 49 dated May 22, 2009 of Ny. Poerbaningsih
Adi Warsito, S.H., are as follows:

President Commissioner : DR. Cheng Cheng Wen
Commissioners : Jonathan L. Parapak (independent commissioner)

John Bellis (independent commissioner)
DR. Adrianus Mooy (independent commissioner)
Ganesh Chander Grover (independent commissioner)
Jeffrey Koes Wonsono

President Director : Benyamin Jonathan Mailool
Directors : Lina Haryanti Latif

Hendra Sidin
Carmelito J. Regalado
R. Soeparmadi
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1. GENERAL (continued)

d. Employees, the Board of Commissioners and Directors and Audit Committee (continued)

As of December 31, 2009, the members of the Audit Committee are as follows:

Chairman : Jonathan L. Parapak
Members : Lie Kwang Tak

R. Hikmat Kartadjoemena

As of December 31, 2008, the members of the Board of Commissioners and the Board of Directors
based on a resolution at the Company’s Stockholders’ Annual General Meeting held on
March 19, 2008 which was notarized under deed No. 36 dated March 19, 2008 of
Ny. Poerbaningsih Adi Warsito, S.H., are as follows:

President Commissioner : DR. Cheng Cheng Wen
Commissioners : Jonathan L. Parapak (independent commissioner)

Jusuf Arbianto Tjondrolukito (independent commissioner)
John Bellis (independent commissioner)
Mardi Henko Sutanto (independent commissioner)
DR. Adrianus Mooy (independent commissioner)
GN Hiang Lin, PhD. (independent commissioner)
Jeffrey Koes Wonsono

President Director : Benyamin Jonathan Mailool
Directors : Lina Haryanti Latif

Hendra Sidin
Carmelito J. Regalado
R. Soeparmadi

As of December 31, 2008, the members of the Audit Committee are as follows:

Chairman : Jonathan L. Parapak
Members : Lie Kwang Tak

R. Hikmat Kartadjoemena

As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the establishment of the Audit Committee is in accordance
with BAPEPAM-LK Regulation No. IX.I.5.

As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company’s corporate secretary is Lina Haryanti Latif.

The Companies have approximately 19,400 and 18,900 employees (unaudited) as of
December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a. Basis of Consolidated Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements are presented in accordance with the generally accepted
accounting principles in Indonesia (Statements of Financial Accounting Standards or “PSAK”) and
BAPEPAM-LK regulations No. VIII.G.7, “Guidelines on Financial Statements Presentation” and
SE-02/PM/2002, “Guidelines on Financial Statements Presentation and Disclosures of Listed or
Public Companies in the Retail Industries”.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

a. Basis of Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

The consolidated financial statements are prepared under the historical cost basis of accounting,
except for merchandise inventory which is stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value,
contracts for swaps, options and forwards which are stated at fair value, and certain investments
which are stated at fair value or at net assets value, or accounted for under the equity method for
associated companies representing equity interest of at least 20% but not more than 50%.

The consolidated statements of cash flows present cash receipts and payments classified into
operating, investing and financing activities. The cash flows from operating activities are presented
under the direct method.

The reporting currency used in the consolidated financial statements is the Indonesian rupiah.

b. Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its Subsidiaries.
All significant intercompany accounts and transactions are eliminated.

The carrying value of the Company’s investment in a Subsidiary is correspondingly adjusted for the
net change in its investment in the Subsidiary’s equity by crediting or debiting “Difference in
Changes in Equity Transactions of Subsidiaries - Net”.

The accounts of foreign subsidiaries were translated into rupiah amounts at the middle rates of
exchange prevailing at balance sheet date for balance sheet accounts and the average rate during
the year for profit and loss accounts. The resulting differences arising from the translations of the
financial statements of Subsidiaries which are an integral part of the Company are debited/credited
to “Other charges (income)” in the consolidated statements of income, while for the Subsidiaries
which are not an integral part of the Company, these are debited/credited to and presented as
“Difference in Foreign Currency Translation”, which is presented under stockholders’ equity as part
of “Difference in Changes in Equity Transactions of Subsidiaries - Net”.

Acquisitions of subsidiaries that qualify as a restructuring transaction of entities under common
control are accounted for in accordance with PSAK 38 (Revised 2004), “Accounting for
Restructuring Transactions of Business under Common Control”. Based on this standard,
acquisition of a subsidiary is accounted based on the pooling of interest, wherein assets and
liabilities of a subsidiary are recorded at their book values. The difference between the transfer
price and the Company’s interest in the subsidiary’s book values, if any, is recorded as “Difference
in Value from Restructuring Transactions of Entities under Common Control” and presented as a
separate component in the Company’s Stockholders’ Equity.

Accordingly, the financial statement items of the combining entities for the period in which the
combination occurs and for any comparative periods disclosed should be included in the financial
statements of the combined entities as if they had been combined from the beginning of the
earliest period presented. The balance of “Difference in Value from Restructuring Transactions of
Entities under Common Control” can be realized to gain or loss from the time the common control
no longer exists between the entities that entered into the transaction.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

c. Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents include all highly liquid investments purchased with original maturities of three
months or less and which are not pledged as collateral to loans.

d. Investments

Investments consist of:

1. Marketable securities in the form of debt and equity securities

In accordance with PSAK 50, “Accounting for Investments in Certain Securities”, marketable
securities are classified into the following three categories:

� Trading

Included in this classification are investments which are purchased for immediate resale,
and are normally characterized by the high frequency of purchase-and-sale transactions.
These investments are made to earn immediate gain from the improvement in the short-
term prices of the securities. Investments that meet this classification are recorded at fair
value. The unrealized gain/loss at balance sheet date is credited/charged to current
operations.

� Held-to-maturity

Investments in debt securities which are held up to maturity date are recorded at cost,
adjusted for amortization of premium or accretion of discount to maturity.

� Available-for-sale

Investments which do not meet the classification of trading and held-to-maturity categories
are recorded at fair value. The difference between the acquisition cost and fair value of the
investment is recorded as unrealized loss (gain) at balance sheet date which is presented
as part of stockholders’ equity (Note 2b).

The cost of marketable securities sold is determined by the average method.

2. Mutual funds

Mutual funds are stated at their net assets value at balance sheet date. Unrealized gains or
losses from the changes in the net assets value of the funds at balance sheet date are
credited or charged to current operations.

3. Time deposits which are either used as collateral or with maturity of greater than three months
but not more than one year from the time of placement are recorded as “Short-term
Investments”.

The time deposits under this classification are recorded at nominal value.

4. Long-term investments in shares of stock without available fair values

Investments in shares of stock wherein the Companies have ownership interest of at least
20% but not exceeding 50% are accounted for under the equity method. Under this method,
the investments are initially stated at cost, and then adjusted for the Companies’ share in the
earnings or losses of the associated companies in proportion to the ownership percentage of
the Companies (equity method) and reduced by dividends received. Investments wherein the
Companies have an ownership interest of less than 20% are stated at cost.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

e. Accounts Receivable

Allowance for doubtful accounts is provided on the basis of the evaluation of the collectibility of the
accounts at the end of the year.

f. Merchandise Inventories

Merchandise inventories are stated at the lower of cost, determined by the conventional retail
method, or net realizable value.

Merchandise inventories do not include consignment goods.

Adoption of PSAK 14 (Revised 2008), Inventories

Effective January 1, 2009, the Companies have adopted PSAK 14 (Revised 2008), “Inventories”,
which supersedes PSAK 14 (1994), “Inventories”.

The adoption of this revised PSAK did not result in significant effect to the Companies’
consolidated financial statements.

g. Prepaid Expenses

Prepaid expenses are amortized over the periods benefited using the straight-line method.

h. Lease

The Companies have adopted PSAK 30 (Revised 2007), “Leases”, which supersedes PSAK 30
(1990), “Accounting for Leases”. Under this revised PSAK, the classification of a lease is
determined based on whether the lessor or lessee controls substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership.

Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership are
classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease income from operating leases is amortized on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

In the adoption of this revised PSAK, the Companies have chosen to apply it prospectively. The
Companies have determined that the outstanding balances related to the financing leases that had
existed prior to January 1, 2008 are appropriate. All arrangements containing a lease that existed
at the beginning of the earliest year presented, were evaluated by the Companies to determine
their classification in accordance with this revised PSAK.

The gain or loss on sale-and-leaseback transaction that results in an operating lease, where it is
clear that the transaction is established at fair value, shall be recognized immediately. If the sale
price is below fair value, any profit or loss shall be recognized immediately except that, if the loss is
compensated for by future lease payments at below market price, it shall be deferred and
amortized in proportion to the lease payments over the period for which the asset is expected to be
used. If the sale price is above fair value, the excess over fair value shall be deferred and
amortized over the period for which the asset is expected to be used.

The gain or loss on a sale-and-leaseback transaction that results in a finance lease, is deferred
and amortized over the lease term.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

h. Lease (continued)

Long-term lease with contract value payable in installments over a period shorter than the lease
period is recorded when the lease agreement is effective by debiting “Prepaid Long-term Rent” at
the contract value and crediting the unpaid portion to “Long-term Debts - Others”.

Prepaid long-term rent, generally on store space, is being amortized on the straight-line method
starting from the opening of the leased store/renewal of the lease over the lease period. The
portion of the rent chargeable to operations within one year is reclassified and presented under
current assets as part of “Prepaid Expenses”.

i. Property and Equipment

The Companies have adopted PSAK 16 (Revised 2007), “Fixed Assets”, which supersedes
PSAK 16 (1994), “Fixed Assets and Other Assets”, and PSAK 17 (1994), “Accounting for
Depreciation” and have chosen the cost model, therefore, the revaluation increment in property
and equipment that was presented under the stockholders’ equity section of the consolidated
balance sheets has been reclassified to retained earnings in 2008.

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
The cost of maintenance and repairs is charged to income as incurred; significant renewals and
betterments are capitalized. When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, their carrying
values and the related accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and any resulting
gain or loss is reflected in income for the year.

Depreciation is computed as follows:

Methods Years Rates

Buildings Straight-line 20 -
Building renovation Straight-line 2 - 5 -
Equipment and installations Double-declining balance - 15% and 25%
Motor vehicles Double-declining balance - 50%
Machines Straight-line 3 - 5 -

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed at each
financial year end.

Landrights are stated at cost and are not amortized, unless there is a management’s prediction or
the probability that extension or renewal of the title is highly unlikely or definitely will not be
obtained.

In accordance with PSAK 47, “Accounting for Land”, the Company recognizes the acquisition cost
of land separately from the legal expenditures incurred to acquire the landrights and the
expenditures for the subsequent extension thereof. These expenditures are deferred and
presented as part of “Other Non-current Assets” in the consolidated balance sheets and are
amortized over the period the landrights.

j. Investment Properties

The Company has adopted PSAK 13 (Revised 2007), “Investment Property”, which supersedes
PSAK 13 (Revised 1994), “Accounting for Investment”, whereby the Company has chosen the cost
model. Investment property is depreciated using the straight-line method over 20 years, except
land which is not depreciated.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

j. Investment Properties (continued)

The Company’s investment properties consist of land, buildings and improvements, which are held
by the Company to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both, rather than for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes or sale in the ordinary
course of business.

Investment property is derecognized when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from
use and no future benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses are recognized in the
statements of income.

k. Deferred Gain on Asset Sale and Lease Transactions

The gain or loss on the implementation of the restructuring program of certain assets of the
Companies involving asset sale and lease transactions is deferred and amortized proportionally
based on the rent expenses related to those assets.

l. Impairment of Assets Value

In accordance with PSAK 48, “Impairment of Assets Value”, the Companies review whether there
is an indication of assets impairment at balance sheet date. If there is an indication of assets
impairment, the Companies estimate the recoverable amount of the assets. Impairment of assets
is recognized as a charge to current operations.

m. Intangible Assets - Computer Software Costs

Cost of computer software purchased and the cost of subsequent updating thereof (charged to
“Other Non-current Assets”) are deferred and amortized on the straight -line method over 4 years.

n. Bonds/Notes Issuance Cost

Expenses incurred in connection with the issuance of bonds/notes are deducted from the proceeds
thereof. The difference between the net proceeds and the nominal value represents premium or
discount that should be amortized over the term of the bonds/notes.

o. Treasury Bonds/Notes

Repurchased instruments of indebtedness that are not retired are treated in the consolidated
financial statements as if they were retired. The difference between the face value of the
instruments of indebtedness and the fair value at the date of repurchase is credited or charged to
current operations.

p. Treasury Stock

Treasury stock, which is shown under the Stockholders’ Equity section of the consolidated balance
sheets, is stated at acquisition cost. The cost of the treasury stock resold is determined by the
average method.

The difference between the acquisition cost and the selling price of treasury stock is charged or
credited to “Additional Paid-in Capital”. When the difference creates a negative balance in the
“Additional Paid-in Capital” account as a result of reacquisition transactions, such negative balance
is charged to retained earnings.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

q. Revenue and Expense Recognition

Revenue from sales of merchandise inventories (except revenue from sales on “Cash-on-Delivery”
basis which is recognized when the goods are delivered to customers) is recognized when the
goods are paid for at the sales counter. Revenue from consignment sales is recorded at the
amount of sales of consigned goods to customers, while the related cost is recorded at the
amounts payable to consignors.

Revenue from sales of prepaid cards (known as “power cards”) by the family entertainment centers
is initially recorded as unearned income and then proportionately recognized as revenue based on
the actual use of the cards by customers. Revenue from sales of tokens is recognized at the time
the tokens are purchased by customers.

Expenses are recognized when incurred.

r. Foreign Currency Transactions and Balances

Transactions involving foreign currencies are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing at the
time the transactions are made. At balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are adjusted to reflect the last prevailing rates as of balance
sheet date and the resulting gains or losses are credited or charged to current operations.

For December 31, 2009, the rates of exchange used (in full amounts) were Rp9,400 to USD1,
Rp102 to JPY1 and Rp6,699 to SGD1, while for December 31, 2008, these were Rp10,950 to
USD1, Rp121 to JPY1 and Rp7,607 to SGD1, computed by taking the average of the last buying
and selling rates for transaction exchange rates for the year.

s. Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

The Companies adopted PSAK 55, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities”.
PSAK 55 sets forth the accounting and reporting standards for derivative transactions and hedging
activities, which requires that every derivative instrument (including embedded derivatives) be
recognized as either an asset or a liability based on the fair value of each contract. Fair value is a
computation of present value by using data and assumptions which are commonly used. Based on
the specific requirements for hedge accounting under PSAK 55, the Companies’ instruments do
not qualify and are not designated as hedge activities for accounting purposes. Accordingly,
changes in the fair value of such derivative instruments are recorded directly in current year
consolidated statement of income.

t. Income Tax

Current tax expense is provided based on the estimated taxable income for the year. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are recognized for temporary differences between the financial and the tax
bases of assets and liabilities at each reporting date. Future tax benefits, such as the carryover of
unused tax losses, are also recognized to the extent that such benefits are more likely than not to
be realized. The tax effects for the year are allocated to current operations, except for the tax
effects from transactions which are directly charged or credited to stockholders’ equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Changes in the carrying
amount of deferred tax assets and liabilities due to a change in tax rates are charged or credited to
current year operations, except to the extent that they relate to items previously charged or
credited to stockholders’ equity.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

t. Income Tax (continued)

For each of the consolidated entities, the tax effects of temporary differences and tax loss
carryover, which individually are either assets or liabilities, are shown at the applicable net
amounts.

Amendment to tax obligation is recorded when an assessment is received or, if appealed against
by the Companies, when the result of the appeal is determined.

u. Employee Benefits

The Companies have recognized provision for employee service entitlements in accordance with
Labor Law No. 13/2003 dated March 25, 2003 (“Labor Law No. 13”).

Under PSAK 24 (Revised 2004), the cost of providing employee benefits under Labor Law No. 13
is determined using the Projected-Unit-Credit actuarial valuation method. Actuarial gains or losses
are recognized as income or expense when the net cumulative unrecognized actuarial gains or
losses for each individual plan at the end of the previous reporting period exceed 10% of the
present value of the defined benefit obligation at that date. These gains or losses are recognized
on a straight-line basis over the expected average remaining working lives of the employees.
Further, past service costs arising from the introduction of a defined benefit plan or changes in the
benefits payable of an existing plan are required to be amortized over the period until the benefits
concerned become vested.

v. Segment Reporting

The Companies follow revised PSAK 5, “Segment Reporting”, in the presentation of segment
reporting in their financial statements. The revised PSAK 5 provides more detailed guidance for
identifying reportable business segments and geographical segments. The primary presentation of
segment reporting is based on business segment while the secondary segment is based on
geographical segment. The financial information which is used by management for evaluating
segment performance is presented in Note 36.

w. Net Income per Share

In accordance with PSAK 56, “Earnings Per Share”, net income per share is computed by dividing
net income by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year after deducting
treasury stock acquired.

There are no dilutive effect as of December 2009 and 2008 because the execution price of the
Company’s warrants is higher than the average share price during those periods in the stock
exchange. The net income amounts are Rp300,035 and Rp10,497 in 2009 and 2008, respectively.
The weighted average number of outstanding shares is 4,515,890,944 shares and 4,513,338,000
shares for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008.

x. Transaction with Related Parties

The Companies have transactions with certain parties which are regarded as having related party
relationships as defined by PSAK 7 on “Related Party Disclosures”.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

x. Transaction with Related Parties (continued)

Related parties are defined under PSAK 7 as follows:

a. Enterprises that, through one or more intermediaries, control, or are controlled by, or are
under common control with, the reporting enterprise (including holding companies,
subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries);

b. Associated companies;

c. Individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting power of the reporting
enterprise that gives them significant influence over the enterprise, and close members of the
family of any such individuals (close members of a family are defined as those members who
are able to exercise influence or can be influenced by such individuals in their transactions
with the reporting enterprise);

d. Key management personnel, that is, those persons having authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the reporting enterprise, including
commissioners, directors and managers of the enterprise and close members of the families
of such individuals; and

e. Enterprises in which a substantial interest in the voting power is owned, directly or indirectly,
by any person described in c or d above, or over which such a person is able to exercise
significant influence. This definition includes enterprises owned by commissioners, directors
or major stockholders of the reporting enterprise and enterprises that have a member of key
management in common with the reporting enterprise.

y. Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could be different
from these estimates.

3. RESTATEMENT AND RECLASSIFICATION OF THE 2008 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

As discussed in Notes 1c and 35, on November 25, 2009, the Company invested in PT Matahari
Department Store Tbk representing ownership interests of 90.76%. The said investment constitutes a
restructuring transaction among entities under common control, and therefore accounted for in a
manner similar to a pooling-of-interest, in accordance with PSAK 38 (Revised 2004), “Accounting for
Restructuring Transactions among Entities under Common Control” (Note 2b).

Accordingly, the consolidated financial statement as of and for the year ended December 31, 2008
was restated to reflect the retroactive effects of the said business acquisition as if it occurred on
January 1, 2008.
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3. RESTATEMENT AND RECLASSIFICATION OF THE 2008 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

A summary of the relevant consolidated financial information for the year ended December 31, 2008
before and after restatement is as follows:

Effect of adoption
of PSAK 38

As previously (revised 2004) As
reported add (deduct) restated

Total Assets 9,741,369 59,360 9,800,729
Total Liabilities 6,633,768 15,759 6,649,527
Stockholders’ Equity 3,107,601 43,601 3,151,202
Operating Income 496,720 (5,421) 491,299

In connection with the implementation of Staff Accounting Bulletin BAPEPAM-LK No. 7 (“BAS 7”)
regarding accounting treatments and disclosures in agency relationship transactions which regulate
the revenue recognition in agency relationship transactions, the Company has reclassified the 2008
consolidated financial statements to conform with the 2009 presentation.

The reclassified accounts for the year ended December 31, 2008 are as follows:

Effect of adoption After
As previously of BAS 7 implementation
reported add (deduct) of BAS 7

Sales from direct purchase and other
trade revenue - 7,738,485 7,738,485

Consignment sales - 4,238,885 4,238,885
Cost of consignment sales - 2,949,752 2,949,752
Commissions from consignment sales - 1,289,133 1,289,133
Net sales 11,977,370 (2,949,752) 9,027,618
Cost of Sales 8,853,215 (2,949,752) 5,903,463

4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

This account consists of the following:

2008
(As restated,

2009 Note 3)

Cash on hand, including USD1, SGD1 and RMB29
in 2009; and SGD3 and RMB32 in 2008 41,962 37,033

Third parties:
Current accounts:

PT Bank CIMB Niaga Tbk (“CIMB”), including
USD10,903 in 2009 and USD410 in 2008 968,084 531,514

PT Bank Permata Tbk 349,224 300,111
PT Bank Internasional Indonesia Tbk 311,278 11,363
PT Bank Negara Indonesia (Persero) Tbk,

including USD12,027 in 2009 124,430 330,526
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4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)

This account consists of the following (continued):
2008

(As restated,
2009 Note 3)

Third parties (continued):
Current accounts (continued):

Bank Julius Baer & Co. Ltd., Singapore -
USD12,786 and SGD332 in 2009 and
SGD8,448 in 2008 122,413 64,264

PT Bank Danamon Indonesia Tbk 104,368 220,809
PT Bank Mega Tbk, including USD11, JPY129

and SGD2 in 2009; and USD2 and SGD2
in 2008 65,002 3,533

PT Bank Central Asia Tbk 64,359 45,053
PT Bank OCBC NISP Tbk 25,026 50,416
Other banks, below Rp40,000 each, including

USD4,064, Euro154, HKD681, RMB101,
JPY1,073 and SGD542 in 2009; and USD251,
Euro90, HKD686, RMB110, JPY11,371 and
SGD5,529 in 2008 53,879 116,902

Time deposits:
PT Bank Mayapada Tbk 10,000 10,000
Other banks, below Rp10,000 each 12,148 21,142

Total 2,252,173 1,742,666

The time deposits denominated in rupiah earned interest at annual rates ranging from 7% to 13.5% in
2009 and from 7% to 13% in 2008, while those denominated in Hong Kong dollar earned interest at
the annual rate of 2.95% in 2008.

As of December 31, 2009, no cash and cash equivalents are used as collateral for obligations.

5. SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS

The short-term investments consist of the following:

2008
(As restated,

2009 Note 3)

Investment in managed funds
Related party (Note 8) 1,070,000 812,000
Third parties - USD2,000 18,800 -

Sub-total 1,088,800 812,000

Investments in debt and equity securities
Held-to-maturity
Third parties

Commercial papers - USD7,317 68,780 -
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5. SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS (continued)

The short-term investments consist of the following (continued):

2008
(As restated,

2009 Note 3)

Investments in debt and equity securities (continued)
Trading securities
Third parties

Bonds (including USD3,290 in 2008) 6,132 42,234
Shares of stock 31 42

Sub-total 6,163 42,276

Time deposits
Third parties - SGD93 in 2009 and SGD40,730

in 2008 625 309,849

Mutual fund
Third party - 7,701

Total 1,164,368 1,171,826

The Company entered into several managed fund agreements with PT Ciptadana Securities (“PT CS”,
an affiliate). Based on these agreements, which can be extended, the Company placed funds in PT CS
for the purchase of investments, such as bonds and other debentures which are not issued by the
Company's related parties.

In April 2009, PT Nadya Putra Investama (“PT NPI”), a wholly-owned subsidiary, invested in
commercial papers issued by Prime Venture Pte. Ltd. and One Earth Holdings Pte. Ltd. with face
values of USD8,000 and USD5,000, respectively. The commercial papers were bought at the price
97.103% and have annual interest rate of 6%. These commercial papers have been extended up to
April 7, 2010. As of December 31, 2009, the face values of the holding commercial papers issued by
Prime Venture Pte. Ltd. and One Earth Holdings Pte. Ltd. are USD3,000 and USD4,435, respectively.

The bonds bore interest at annual rates ranging from 12.09% to 16.15% in 2009 and from 6.62% to
16.15% in 2008.

In 2008, the time deposit mainly consist of deposit placed in Bank Credit Suisse, Singapore Branch
amounting to SGD40,637. The time deposits represent guarantee (escrow) funds received from
Dellmore Investment Limited (“DM”) relating to the LMIR Trust units owned by Tristar which are held
by DM (Notes 2k, 10, 11, 16 and 33). The time deposit earned interest at the annual rate of 1.52%. On
January 9, 2009, the Company refunded the guarantee (escrow) funds relating to the LMIR Trust units
owned by Tristar.

On August 30, 2007, the Company entered into a Managed Investment Assets Agreement (Kontrak
Pengelolaan Aset Investasi) with PT Syailendra Capital (“Syailendra”) wherein, based on the
agreement, the Company appointed Syailendra as its investment manager and gave power and full
authority to Syailendra to receive and manage its investment assets on behalf of the Company. The
Company pays a certain fee as compensation to Syailendra. On August 31, 2007, the Company
transferred Rp10,000 as the investment portfolio managed by Syailendra. As of December 31, 2008,
the Company’s investment portfolio consists of investment in a mutual fund with net assets value of
Rp7,701, including decrease of net asset value amounting to Rp6,055 for the year ended
December 31, 2008. In April 2009, the Company took the early termination of its investment in mutual
fund.
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5. SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS (continued)

The Companies recognized net gain amounting to Rp1,240 from the sale of its investments in mutual
fund, managed funds and debt securities; and net loss amounting to Rp16,817 from the sale of its
investments in debt securities for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

6. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable - trade consist of third-party receivables from the following types of sales:

2009 2008
Customer sales through credit cards, including

joint promotion receivable 29,996 42,763
Credit sales 997 2,715

Total 30,993 45,478

The accounts receivable - trade as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 are collectible in the first quarter
of the following years.

Accounts receivable - others consist of the following:

2008
(As restated,

2009 Note 3)

Rent
Third parties 93,871 57,377
Related parties (Note 8) 830 672

Sub-total 94,701 58,049

Insurance claim
Third parties 14,211 -

8

Others - net
Third parties 27,885 586,380
Related parties (Note 8) 138 1,461

Sub-total 28,023 587,841

Total 136,935 645,890

On September 30, 2009, the stores owned by the Company and PT Matahari Graha Fantasi, a
Subsidiary, located in Padang, were damaged by earthquake. The total net book value of the damaged
inventories and property and equipment were reclassified to “Account receivable - Others - insurance
claim” (Notes 7 and 11).

As of December 31, 2008, accounts receivable - others mainly represent receivable from developers
due to cancellation of rental agreements.

The management believes that all accounts receivable are collectible; therefore, no allowance for
doubtful accounts has been provided in 2009 and 2008.

As of December 31, 2009, no receivables are used as collateral for obligations.
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7. MERCHANDISE INVENTORIES

Merchandise inventories consist of the following:

2009 2008

Ladies’ wear 81,222 60,811
Men’s wear 81,145 60,974
Children’s wear 67,001 55,478
Shoes 74,420 51,089
Bags, cosmetics and accessories 13,381 6,577
Toys and sports gadgets 12,463 9,844
Books and stationery 32,083 8,276
Household appliances and bathroom accessories 34,506 39,640
Daily needs, food and beverages 775,584 690,319

Total 1,171,805 983,008

The management believes that the merchandise inventories value represent the net realizable value.

On September 30, 2009, the stores owned by the Companies that were located in Padang, were
damaged by earthquake. The total net book value of the damaged inventories was reclassified to
“Account receivable - Others - insurance claim” (Note 6).

As of December 31, 2009, no merchandise inventory is pledged as collateral to long-term bank loans.

The Companies carry insurance on their respective merchandise inventories from fire and other risks
for Rp1,190,316 as of December 31, 2009. The management believes that the insurance coverage is
adequate to cover the possible losses from fire and other risks. The insurance coverage is covered by
PT Asuransi Central Asia, PT Lippo General Insurance Tbk (affiliate) and PT Asuransi Bintang Tbk.

8. ACCOUNTS AND TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The details of the accounts with related parties (mainly affiliates) are as follows:

Amount Percentage to Total Assets/Liabilities

2008 2008
(As restated, (As restated

2009 Note 3) 2009 Note 3)

Short-term investments (Note 5)
Investment in managed funds -

PT Ciptadana Securities 1,070,000 812,000 10.13 8.29

Accounts receivable - others (Note 6)
Rent
Others 830 672 0.01 0.01

Others
PT First Media Tbk - 1,323 - 0.01
Other 138 138 0.00 0.00

Sub-total 138 1,461 0.00 0.01

Total 968 2,133 0.01 0.02
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8. ACCOUNTS AND TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES (continued)

Amount Percentage to Total Assets/Liabilities

2008 2008
(As restated, (As restated

2009 Note 3) 2009 Note 3)

Prepaid expenses
Rent
PT Mandiri Cipta Gemilang 9,791 9,791 0.09 0.10
PT Direct Power 3,532 3,532 0.03 0.04
Other 400 388 0.00 0.00

Sub-total 13,723 13,711 0.12 0.14

Insurance
Other 811 - 0.01 -

Others
Others (below Rp1,000 each) 601 1,591 0.01 0.01

Total 15,135 15,302 0.14 0.15

Due from related parties - net
PT Bintang Sidoraya 7,566 5,027 0.07 0.05
PT Karya Dinamika Investama 1,600 1,600 0.02 0.02
Employee - 2,200 - 0.02
Others 281 456 0.00 0.00

Total 9,447 9,283 0.09 0.09

Investments in associated
companies (Note 9)
Investments in:

PT Matahari Leisure 26,638 27,291 0.25 0.28
PT Bintang Sidoraya 2,380 2,380 0.02 0.02
PT Tason Mitra Prima 2,082 2,082 0.02 0.02
PT Lippo Securities Tbk - 55,440 - 0.57
Other 400 400 0.00 0.00

Total 31,500 87,593 0.29 0.89

Purchase of property and equipment
PT Multipolar Tbk 17,182 22,727 0.16 0.23

Rental advances (Note 12)
PT Mandiri Cipta Gemilang (Note 35) 324,260 - 3.07 -
PT Menara Bhumimegah (Note 35) 286,433 286,433 2.71 2.92

Total 610,693 286,433 5.78 2.92

Prepaid long-term rent - net (Note 13)
PT Direct Power 79,478 83,010 0.75 0.85
PT Mandiri Cipta Gemilang 70,170 79,961 0.66 0.82
Other 600 - 0.01 -

Total 150,248 162,971 1.42 1.67

Advances for purchase of property
and equipment (Note 14)
PT Lippo Karawaci Tbk - 118,000 - 1.20
Other - 13 - 0.00

Total - 118,013 - 1.20
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8. ACCOUNTS AND TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES (continued)
Amount Percentage to Total Assets/Liabilities

2008 2008
(As restated, (As restated

2009 Note 3) 2009 Note 3)

Other non-current assets
Computer software
PT Multipolar Tbk 12,477 10,929 0.12 0.11

Guarantee deposit
Others 318 318 0.00 0.00

Due to related parties
Avel Pty. Limited, Australia 2,289 353 0.03 0.01
PT Buana Trans Mandiri 1,467 1,437 0.02 0.02
PT Bintang Taratrans Buana 1,350 1,350 0.02 0.02
Others 414 3 0.01 0.00

Total 5,520 3,143 0.08 0.05

The following is a summary of significant transactions (affecting revenues/income and expenses)
entered into with related parties (mainly affiliates):

Percentage to Respective
Amount Income or Expenses

2008 2008
(As restated, (As restated

2009 Note 3) 2009 Note 3)

Selling Expenses
Rental expenses (including amortization of
long-term rent)
PT Mandiri Cipta Gemilang 9,791 8,159 1.12 1.07
PT Direct Power 3,532 1,766 0.40 0.23
Others (below Rp1,000 each) 1,377 1,513 0.16 0.20

Sub-total 14,700 11,438 1.68 1.50

Rental income
PT Lippo Karawaci Tbk (3,745) (2,931) (5.10) (4.52)
PT Multipolar Tbk (911) (1,127) (1.24) (1.74)
PT First Media Tbk (215) (1,652) (0.29) (2.55)

Sub-total (4 ,871) (5,710) (6.63) (8.81)

Net 9,829 5,728 (4.95) (7.31)

Marketing Expenses
PT Air Pasifik Utama 10,750 - 7.88 -
Avel Pty. Limited, Australia 7,941 4,888 5.82 5.89
Others 680 121 0.50 0.15

Total 19,371 5,009 14.20 6.04

General and Administrative Expenses
Salaries and employee benefits
Boards of Commissioners and Directors 20,939 20,465 2.39 2.57

Insurance expenses
PT Lippo General Insurance Tbk 3,306 1 7.41 0.00

Consultant fees
Others 841 7 1.16 0.01
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8. ACCOUNTS AND TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES (continued)

Percentage to Respective
Amount Income or Expenses

2008 2008
(As restated, (As restated

2009 Note 3) 2009 Note 3)

Communication expenses
Other 812 205 2.93 0.75

Other expenses
PT Multipolar Tbk 1,811 332 2.70 0.72
Others (below Rp1,000 each) 1,208 882 1.80 1.91

Total 3,019 1,214 4.50 2.63

Other Charges (Income)
Interest income
PT Ciptadana Securities (170,537) (46,669) (49.05) (19.61)

Other charges
PT Ciptadana Securities 2,156 - 1.60 -

Transactions with the related parties are made under terms comparable to those that would be
obtained in similar transactions with unrelated parties, except for accounts receivable - others and
certain amounts due from related parties which are non-interest bearing.

Transactions with the related parties do not result in conflict of interest as discussed in BAPEPAM-LK
Regulation No. IX.E.1.

The relationship and nature of account balances/transactions with related parties are as follows:

Nature of
No. Related Parties Relationship Account Balances/Transactions

1. PT Ciptadana Securities Affiliate, common controlled
entity

Investment in managed funds,
interest income, payment for
promotion expenses and other
expenses

2. PT First Media Tbk Affiliate, common controlled
entity

Accounts receivable - others, rental
income, payment for promotion
expenses, communication expenses
and other expenses

3. PT Mandiri Cipta Gemilang Affiliate, subsidiary of PT LK Prepaid expenses, rental advances,
prepaid long-term rent - net and
rental expenses

4. PT Direct Power Affiliate, subsidiary of PT LK Prepaid expenses, prepaid long-
term rent - net and rental expenses

5. PT Bintang Sidoraya PT TPRB’s associated
company

Intercompany account and
investment in shares of stock

6. PT Karya Dinamika Investama PT NPI’s associated
company

Intercompany account and
investment in shares of stock

7. Employee Key employees Loans
8. PT Matahari Leisure Company’s direct associated

company
Investment in shares of stock and
intercompany account

9. PT Tason Mitra Prima PT TPRB’s associated
company

Investment in shares of stock

10. PT Lippo Securities Tbk Affiliate, common controlled
entity

Investment in shares of stock
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8. ACCOUNTS AND TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES (continued)

Nature of
No. Related Parties Relationship Account Balances/Transactions

11. PT Multipolar Tbk Company’s major
stockholder

Purchase of property and
equipment, computer software,
rental income, other expenses,
prepaid expenses, prepaid long-term
rent - net, advances for purchase of
property and equipment, guarantee
deposit and rental expenses

12. PT Menara Bhumimegah Affiliate, subsidiary of PT LK Rental advances
13. PT Lippo Karawaci Tbk ( “PT LK”) Affiliate, common controlled

entity
Renovation of property and
equipment, rental income, accounts
receivable - others, prepaid
expenses, intercompany account,
guarantee deposit and rental
expenses

14. Avel Pty. Limited, Australia Affiliate Intercompany account and payment
for promotion expenses

15. PT Buana Trans Mandiri
PT Bintang Taratrans Buana

PT TPRB’s associated
company

Intercompany account

16. PT Air Pasifik Utama Affiliate, common controlled
entity

Payment for promotion expenses

17. Boards of Commissioners and
Directors

Boards of Commissioners
and Directors

Payment of salaries

18. PT Lippo General Insurance Tbk Affiliate, common controlled
entity

Insurance expenses and prepaid
expenses

The account balances/transactions with other related parties (below Rp1,000 each) primarily consist of
accounts receivable - others, prepaid expenses, regular intercompany accounts, investment in shares
of stock, prepaid long-term rent - net, advances for purchase of property and equipment, guarantee
deposit, rental income/expenses, marketing expenses, consultant fees, communication expenses and
other expenses.

9. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

This account represents investments which are accounted for under the equity method and consists of
the following:

Accumulated
Equity in

Undistributed Net
Percentage of Carrying Earnings (Loss)
Ownership Value of Investees

2009

PT Matahari Leisure (“PT ML”) 50.00 26,638 25,201
PT Bintang Sidoraya (“PT BSR”) 24.00 2,380 (18,581)
PT Tason Mitra Prima (“PT TMP”) 50.00 2,082 (918)
PT Karya Dinamika Investama

(“PT KDI”) 36.36 400 -

Total 31,500 5,702
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9. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES (continued)

This account represents investments which are accounted for under the equity method and consists of
the following (continued):

Accumulated
Equity in

Undistributed Net
Percentage of Carrying Earnings (Loss)
Ownership Value of Investees

2008 (As restated, Note 3)

PT ML 50.00 27,291 25,854
PT BSR 24.00 2,380 (18,581)
PT TMP 50.00 2,082 (918)
PT KDI 36.36 400 -
PT Lippo Securities Tbk (“PT Lipsec”) 20.27 55,440 (92,932)

Total 87,593 (86,577)

PT ML

The Company directly owns the 50% equity in PT ML. PT ML is engaged in the manufacture of
amusement machines. The equity in net earnings (loss) of this investee amounting to (Rp653) and
Rp5,618 for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. The Company received cash
dividend amounting to Rp5,000 in 2008.

PT BSR and PT TMP

The investments in PT BSR and PT TMP were acquired through PT Taraprima Reksabuana,
a Subsidiary. PT BSR is engaged in the sale and marketing of beer while PT TMP has not started its
commercial operations. The equity in net loss of PT BSR and PT TMP amounted to Rp18,743 and
Rp1,313, respectively, in 2008.

PT KDI

PT Nadya Putra Investama, a Subsidiary, owns the 36.36% equity in PT KDI. PT KDI has not started
commercial operations.

PT Lipsec

The investment in PT Lipsec was acquired through PT Matahari Department Store Tbk (“PT MDS”), a
Subsidiary. PT Lipsec is engaged in, among others, investment management and investment advisory.
The equity in net earnings (loss) of this investee amounted to Rp1,948 and (Rp7,750) for the years
ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. These net income (loss) of associated company
have been adjusted with amortization on excess of acquisition cost on investment in equity amounted
to Rp8,497 and Rp7,462 for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

In October 2009, PT MDS sold all of its ownership in PT Lipsec. The difference between the selling
price and the acquisition cost of investment is presented as “Other expenses (Income)” in the
consolidated financial statements.
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10. OTHER LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS

This account represents:

2008
(As restated,

2009 Note 3)

Investment in LMIR Trust units - SGD25,446 in 2009
and SGD15,621 in 2008 170,453 118,831

Investments in shares of stock which are accounted
for under the cost method

PT Courts Indonesia Tbk (“PT CI”) 4,251 4,251
BigboXX.com (CI) Limited (“BCL”) - net 5 5
PT Bakti Sarana Ventura (“PT BSV”) - 100

Sub-total 4,256 4,356

Total 174,709 123,187

LMIR Trust

Tristar Capital Limited (“Tristar”), a Subsidiary, hold available-for-sale investment of 50,389,000 units
of LMIR Trust, a trust which has investments in assets such as commercial mall and retail spaces. As
of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the market values of the units were Rp170,453 and Rp118,831,
respectively. The differences between the acquisition cost and fair value of the investment amounting
to Rp86,732 and Rp138,354 are recorded as unrealized loss as of December 31, 2009 and 2008
which are presented under stockholders’ equity.

On December 24, 2008, Tristar received 50,389,000 LMIR Trust units as a realization of agreement
with Dellmore Investment Ltd. (Note 5).

PT CI

The investment in PT CI represents 4.9889% ownership. PT CI is engaged in the electronics and
furniture retail business.

BCL

Prime Connection Limited, a Subsidiary owns the investment in BCL, a company which is part of
Hutchison Whampoa Ltd. - Hong Kong, a business group which is engaged in the retail and
distribution business.

PT BSV

PT Matahari Department Store Tbk (“PT MDS”), a Subsidiary, owned the investment in PT BSV which
represented 1% of ownership. PT BSV is engaged in financing activities. In 2009, PT MDS sold all of
its ownership in PT BSV.
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11. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

The details of property and equipment are as follows:

Transaction during the Year
Beginning Ending

2009 Balance Additions Reclassifications* Disposals** Balance

Carrying Value
Direct Ownership:
Landrights 108,809 - - - 108,809
Buildings 837,638 76,746 120,935 26,347 1,008,972
Buildings renovation 382,779 32,802 107,028 89,005 433,604
Equipment and installations 1,941,484 124,204 257,262 228,920 2,094,030
Motor vehicles 28,130 3,048 3,805 1,849 33,134
Machines 287,031 10,396 27,013 2,756 321,684

Total 3,585,871 247,196 516,043 348,877 4,000,233

Accumulated depreciation
Direct Ownership:
Landrights - 462 - - 462
Buildings 234,266 59,529 - 10,614 283,181
Buildings renovation 152,542 86,709 (138) 54,409 184,704
Equipment and installations 999,343 228,657 138 174,272 1,053,866
Motor vehicles 21,513 5,503 - 1,857 25,159
Machines 249,440 27,665 - 2,737 274,368

Total 1,657,104 408,525 - 243,889 1,821,740

Net of accumulated
depreciation 1,928,767 (161,329) 516,043 104,988 2,178,493

Allowance for possible loss
from disposal (24,897) (47,000) - (71,897) -

Net 1,903,870 (208,329) 516,043 33,091 2,178,493

* reclassification from advances for purchase of property and equipment
** including assets damaged by earthquake in Padang

2008 Transaction during the Year
(As restated, Beginning Ending
Note 3) Balance Additions Reclassifications* Disposals Balance

Carrying Value
Direct Ownership:
Landrights 110,939 - - 2,130 108,809
Buildings 832,857 25 4,841 85 837,638
Buildings renovation 257,100 64,575 86,837 25,733 382,779
Equipment and installations 1,613,400 116,622 266,013 54,551 1,941,484
Motor vehicles 24,348 1,544 3,572 1,334 28,130
Machines 279,568 10,492 5,286 8,315 287,031

Total 3,118,212 193,258 366,549 92,148 3,585,871

Accumulated depreciation
Direct Ownership:
Buildings 194,467 39,811 - 12 234,266
Buildings renovation 114,936 60,391 - 22,785 152,542
Equipment and installations 844,965 191,883 - 37,505 999,343
Motor vehicles 18,685 4,118 - 1,290 21,513
Machines 222,389 34,952 - 7,901 249,440

Total 1,395,442 331,155 - 69,493 1,657,104
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11. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

2008 Transaction during the Year
(As restated, Beginning Ending
Note 3) (continued) Balance Additions Reclassifications* Disposals Balance

Net of accumulated
depreciation 1,722,770 (137,897) 366,549 22,655 1,928,767

Allowance for possible loss
from disposal (24,897) - - - (24,897)

Net 1,697,873 (137,897) 366,549 22,655 1,903,870

* reclassification from advances for purchase of property and equipment

In 2009 and 2008, the Companies sold certain property and equipment as follows:

a. Sale of Property and Equipment

2009 2008

Proceeds 7,140 8,234
Net book value (26,113) (22,655)

Loss (18,973) (14,421)

b. Sale of Investment in Shares, and Asset Sale and Lease Transactions

On November 19, 2007, the Company and Tristar, a Subsidiary, entered into sale of investment in
shares and asset sale and lease transactions on properties located in Madiun, Semarang, Malang,
Tangerang, Depok and Medan (Note 35). The difference between the proceeds from the sale and
net book value was recorded as deferred gain on asset sale and lease transactions and amortized
proportionally over the rental period based on the rent expenses related to those assets as follows:

2009 2008

Balance at beginning of year 387,789 422,282
Amortization (38,362) (34,493)

Balance at end of year 349,427 387,789
Less current portion 41,431 38,362

Long-term portion 307,996 349,427

The depreciation for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 was charged to the following:

2008
(As restated,

2009 Note 3)

General and administrative expenses 402,596 326,491
Other charges - others 5,767 4,552
Cost of sales - bakery overhead 162 112

Total 408,525 331,155
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11. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

The Companies continuously review and maximize the Companies’ operations to generate income,
review the appropriateness of stores location and demographic condition, close down some non-value
added stores, and reduce the spaces occupied by some stores to enhance operating efficiency. In
connection with these activities, the Companies made provisions, such as allowance for possible loss
from disposal of property and equipment.

On September 30, 2009, the stores owned by the Company and PT Matahari Graha Fantasi, a
Subsidiary, located in Padang, were damaged by earthquake. The total net book value of the damaged
property and equipment were reclassified to “Account receivable - Others - insurance claim” (Note 6).

The landrights represent rights (Hak Guna Bangunan or “HGB” and Hak Milik Rumah Susun or
“HMRS”) on parcels of land and buildings located in several cities in Indonesia. These HGB and
HMRS will expire on various dates from year 2010 to 2038. The HGB and HMRS are under the
Company’s and subsidiaries’ names. The management believes that no impairment of assets value
contemplated in PSAK 48, “Impairment of Assets Value”, has occurred as of December 31, 2009.

The Companies carry insurance for Rp3,087,353 and USD37,671 as of December 31, 2009, on their
respective property and equipment, except land, from fire and other risks. The management believes
that the insurance coverage is adequate to cover possible losses from fire and other risks. The
insurance coverage is covered by PT Asuransi Central Asia, PT Lippo General Insurance (affiliate) and
PT Asuransi Bintang Tbk.

As of December 31, 2008, property and equipment with net carrying value of Rp154,325 are pledged
as collateral to bonds payable (Note 21).

12. RENTAL ADVANCES

This account represents rental advances made to building owners for new stores. The rental advances
are used for rental payment at the start of the rent period (Note 35). As of December 31, 2009 and
2008, the rental advances to related parties amounted to Rp610,693 and Rp286,433 (Note 8).

13. PREPAID LONG-TERM RENT - NET

This account represents the long-term rent prepayment for the Company’s stores located at Mega Mall
Pluit, Pejaten Village, Bellanova Country Mall, Puri Paragon City, Cibubur Junction and other locations
in 2009, and the Company’s stores located at Mega Mall Pluit, Bellanova Country Mall, Puri Paragon
City, Cibubur Junction, Bandung Indah Plaza and other locations in 2008.

As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the prepaid long-term rent to related parties, net of current
portion, amounted to Rp150,248 and Rp162,971, respectively (Note 8).

14. ADVANCES FOR PURCHASE OF PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

This account includes advances for purchase of equipment and installations in the Companies’ existing
stores. In 2008, this account primarily represents advances for store spaces under construction to be
used for the Companies’ store in Lampung. The advances account will be reclassified to property and
equipment upon the transfer of the stores to the Companies after completion of
construction/installation or delivery of the equipment purchased.

As of December 31, 2008, the advances for purchase of property and equipment to related parties
amounted to Rp118,013 (Note 8).
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15. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - TRADE

This account represents liabilities to suppliers (third parties) for merchandise purchased under the
following arrangements:

2009 2008

Direct purchase 890,596 828,884
Consignment 404,082 362,868

Total 1,294,678 1,191,752

The amounts due to suppliers as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 are all payable in next quarter.

16. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - OTHERS

This account primarily represents liabilities to contractors for building renovation work, including store
decoration, and to other parties for marketing expenses. In 2008, this account primarily represents
liabilities to Dellmore Investment Limited (“DM”) related to the receipt of escrow fund from DM (Notes
2r, 5 and 33). In addition, this account consists of the estimated liabilities relating to the Companies’
customer loyalty program amounting to Rp18,136 and Rp10,984 as of December 31, 2009 and 2008,
respectively.

17. TAXES PAYABLE

Taxes payable consist of the following:

2008
(As restated,

2009 Note 3)

Income Tax payable (less prepayments of Rp430
in 2009 and Rp34,364 in 2008) 26,127 1,207

Other taxes payable:
Income Tax

Article 21 4,415 29,823
Article 23 9,495 7,214
Article 25 113 2,859
Article 26 700 279

Value Added Tax 1,276 3,804
Others 1,490 109

Total 43,616 45,295
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17. TAXES PAYABLE (continued)

A reconciliation between income (loss) before Income Tax, as shown in the consolidated statements of
income, and estimated taxable income (loss) of the Company is as follows:

2008
(As restated,

2009 Note 3)

Income (loss) before Income Tax per consolidated
statements of income 373,934 (70,570)

Subsidiaries’ loss (income) before tax - net 72,008 (92,953)
Equity in net loss (income) of associates - net (1,295) 22,188

Income (loss) before Income Tax of the Company 444,647 (141,335)
Temporary differences:

Difference in Restructuring Transaction of Entities
under Common Control 210,834 -

Depreciation and amortization (30,447) (49,912)
Allowance for stores restructuring (24,897) -
Allowance for doubtful accounts (21,774) -
Others (653,244) 438,475

Permanent differences:
Employee benefits 500 500
Income already subjected to final

tax/non-tax objects
- Rent - net (68,681) (71,917)
- Interest (53,044) (46,927)
- Dividend (2,524) (41)

Realized/unrealized holding loss (gain) on
listed shares of stock (22) 452

Others - 6,087

Estimated taxable income (fiscal loss)
of the Company (198,652) 135,382

The computation of Income Tax expense is as follows:

2008
(As restated,

2009 Note 3)

Taxable income
Company - 135,382

Subsidiaries (PT MSE, PT MDS and PT TPRB
in 2009 and PT MGF, PT MSE and PT TPRB
in 2008) 94,846 5,793

Income Tax expense - current
Company - 33,833
Subsidiaries (PT MSE, PT MDS and PT TPRB

in 2009 and PT MGF, PT MSE and PT TPRB
in 2008) 26,557 1,738

Total 26,557 35,571
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17. TAXES PAYABLE (continued)

The computation of Income Tax expense is as follows (continued):

2008
(As restated,

2009 Note 3)

Income Tax expense (benefit) - deferred
at enacted maximum tax rate of 28% in 2009
and 30% in 2008
Company

Effects on temporary differences:
Depreciation and amortization 8,525 14,974
Allowance for stores restructuring 6,971 -
Allowance for doubtful accounts 6,097 -
Difference in Restructuring Transaction of

Entities under Common Control (59,033) -
Others 182,908 (131,543)

Reduction on deferred tax assets/liabilities
resulting from reduction in tax rates
based on Law No. 36 Year 2008 and others 6,975 239

Effect on estimated fiscal loss (55,623) -

Net 96,820 (116,330)
Subsidiaries (45,965) 6,626

Income Tax expense (benefit) - deferred 50,855 (109,704)

Income Tax expense (benefit) - current and deferred
Company 96,820 (82,497)
Subsidiaries (19,408) 8,364

Net 77,412 (74,133)

The computation of the estimated Income Tax payable (claims for tax refund) is as follows:

2008
(As restated,

2009 Note 3)

Income Tax expense - current
Company - 33,833
Subsidiaries (PT MSE, PT MDS and PT TPRB

in 2009 and PT MGF, PT MSE and PT TPRB
in 2008) 26,557 1,738

Total 26,557 35,571

Prepayments of Income Tax
Company

Article 23 29,256 7,657
Article 25 15,625 26,164

Sub-total 44,881 33,821
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17. TAXES PAYABLE (continued)

The computation of the estimated Income Tax payable (claims for tax refund) is as follows (continued):

2008
(As restated,

2009 Note 3)

Subsidiaries (PT MGF, PT MSE and PT MDS
in 2009 and 2008)
Article 23 422 383
Article 25 1,195 493

Sub-total 1,617 876

Total prepayments 46,498 34,697

Estimated Income Tax payable (claim for tax refund)
Company (44,881) 12
Subsidiaries

PT MDS 25,498 (333)
PT MSE 9 4
PT TPRB 620 233
PT MGF (1,187) 958

Net (19,941) 874

On May 26, 2009, PT Matahari Department Store Tbk (“PT MDS”), a Subsidiary, received tax
assessment letters for tax overpayment (“Surat Ketetapan Pajak Lebih Bayar or SKPLB”) for the fiscal
year 2007 amounted to Rp704. Based on the decision letter from the Directorate General of Taxation
dated June 9, 2009, it is decided that SKPLB will be compensated with tax assessment letters for tax
underpayment (“Surat Ketetapan Pajak Kurang Bayar or SKPKB”) and tax collection letter (“Surat
Tagihan Pajak or STP”) for the year 2007 amounted to Rp4, therefore the amount of cash received in
the year 2009 is Rp700.

On March 23, 2009, PT Matahari Graha Fantasi (“PT MGF”), a Subsidiary, received SKPLB and
SKPKB for the fiscal year 2007. Based on the SKPLB, the Directorate General of Taxation adjusted
PT MGF’s claim for tax refund to become Rp216. Based on the SKPKB, PT MGF was liable for
additional Income Tax (covering Income Tax Articles 23 and 26), Value Added Tax (“VAT”) and the
related penalty, totaling Rp1,169. The adjustment of the 2007 claim and the assessment for additional
underpayment of Income Tax and VAT above were charged to current operations.

On March 25, 2008, PT MGF received tax assessment letters for tax overpayment SKPLB and SKPKB
for the fiscal year 2006. Based on the SKPLB, the Directorate General of Taxation adjusted PT MGF’s
claim for tax refund to become Rp623. Based on the SKPKB, PT MGF was liable for additional Income
Tax (covering Income Tax Articles 23 and 26), VAT and the related penalty, totaling Rp557. The
adjustment of the 2006 claim and the assessment for additional underpayment of Income Tax and VAT
above were charged to current operations.

On March 18, 2008, PT MDS received SKPLB for the year 2006 amounted Rp638. Based on the
decision letter from the Directorate General of Taxation dated April 3, 2008, it is decided that SKPLB
will be compensated with SKPKB and STP for the year 2006 amounted Rp5, therefore the amount of
cash received in year 2008 is Rp633.
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17. TAXES PAYABLE (continued)

The reconciliation between the Income Tax expense (benefit) calculated by applying the applicable tax
rate to the income (loss) before Income Tax, and the net Income Tax expense (benefit) shown in the
consolidated statements of income for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 is as follows:

2008
(As restated,

2009 Note 3)
Income (loss) before Income Tax per consolidated

statements of income 373,934 (70,570)

Income Tax expense (benefit) at the applicable tax rate 104,702 (21,171)

Tax effect on permanent differences:
Employee benefits 426 280
Income already subjected to final tax/non-tax

objects - net (36,792) (36,598)
Others - net (2,627) (10,450)

Reduction on deferred tax assets/liabilities
resulting from reduction in tax rates based on
Law No. 36 Year 2008 and others 11,703 575

Reduction on Corporate Income Tax rates based on
Ministry of Finance Rule No.238/PMK.03/2008 - (6,769)

Net Income Tax expense (benefit) per
consolidated statements of income 77,412 (74,133)

In September 2008, Law No. 7 Year 1983 regarding “Income Tax” was revised for the fourth time with
the issuance of Law No. 36 Year 2008. The revised Law stipulates changes in corporate tax rates from
progressive tax rates to a single rate of 28% for fiscal year 2009 and 25% for fiscal years 2010 and
onwards. The impact of the change in tax rates which amounted to Rp11,703 and Rp1,077 was
deducted from deferred income tax benefit debited to operations in 2009 and 2008.

In December 2007, the Government issued a regulation relating to a further tax reduction of 5% from
the applicable tax rates for publicly-listed companies effective January 1, 2008, if they comply with the
certain requirements relating to shareholding composition. The Company has complied with these
requirements and therefore has applied the reduced tax rate in determining its 2008 current income tax
expense. The Company was in the fiscal loss position for the year ended December 31, 2009.
Therefore, no allowance for corporate income tax (current period) has been provided in 2009.

The tax effects of the significant temporary differences between financial and tax reporting which are
outstanding as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 are as follows:

2008
(As restated,

2009 Note 3)

Company:
Deferred tax assets

Difference in Restructuring Transaction of
Entities under Common Control 52,709 -

Fiscal loss current year 49,663 -
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17. TAXES PAYABLE (continued)

The tax effects of the significant temporary differences between financial and tax reporting which are
outstanding as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 are as follows (continued):

2008
(As restated,

2009 Note 3)

Company (continued):
Deferred tax assets (continued)

Allowance for doubtful accounts 21,012 26,455
Accrual for employee benefits 5,758 5,758
Gain on asset sale and lease transactions 4,096 4,600
Allowance for possible loss on long-term investments 163 163
Loss on foreign exchange - net, including

loss/gain on changes in fair value of
currency swap/option/forward contracts - 147,322

Allowance for stores restructuring - 6,224

Total 133,401 190,522

Deferred tax liabilities
Depreciation and amortization 95,587 87,211
Gain on foreign exchange - net, including

loss/gain on changes in fair value of
currency swap/option/forward contracts 27,808 -

Insurance claim 3,515 -

Total 126,910 87,211

Deferred tax assets - net
Company 6,491 103,311
Subsidiaries (PT MGF, PT MSE, PT MDS, PT TPRB,

PT TPI, PT NPI, PT PGP and PT Prima in 2009
and PT MGF, PT MSE, PT TPRB, PT TPI and
PT MDS in 2008) 43,932 6,855

Total 50,423 110,166

Deferred tax liabilities - net
Subsidiary (PT NPI in 2008) - 8,888

Total - 8,888

As of the financial statements completion date, the Company and its Subsidiaries have not yet
submitted their respective 2009 Income Tax Return (“Surat Pemberitahuan Tahunan or SPT”) to the
Tax Office. The estimated taxable income in 2008 agrees with the amount reported in SPT submitted
by the Company to the Tax Office.

No current Income Tax expense was provided for MIFCO, PT MKN, MF and MIBV in 2009 and for
MIFCO, PT NPI, PT MKN, PT MDS and MF in 2008 since they are still in a tax loss position, after
considering the tax losses carryover from previous years, and for PT MMS, PT MMT, PT MBD, PCL,
BL, PT MP, BRC, MI, MTL, GCL and PT MDP in 2009 and for PT MMS, PT MMT, PT MBD, PCL, BL,
PT Prima, BRC, MI, MTL, GCL, PT MDP, PT MP and PT PGP in 2008 since they have not started
their operations.
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18. ACCRUED EXPENSES

This account consists of the following:

2008
(As restated,

2009 Note 3)

Salaries and employee benefits (Note 32) 163,175 118,111
Interest 102,968 75,559
Marketing and supplies 68,943 67,043
Electricity and energy 52,497 43,155
Rental 54,498 36,544
Others 124,400 131,941

Total 566,481 472,353

19. NOTES PAYABLE

The balance of the notes payable is computed as follows:

2009 2008

Notes USD200,000 matured in year 2012 1,880,000 -
Notes USD150,000 matured in year 2009 (less

treasury notes of USD29,650 in 2008) - 1,317,833

Balance 1,880,000 1,317,833
Unamortized notes discount and issuance cost (91,789) (14,741)

Net 1,788,211 1,303,092
Less Current Liabilities - 1,303,092

Non-Current Liabilities 1,788,211 -

Notes USD200,000 matured in year 2012 (“2012 Notes”)

On July 10, 2009, Matahari International B.V. (“MIBV”), a wholly-owned subsidiary, issued an
Exchange Offer Memorandum, whereby MIBV proposed to Company subsidiary’s noteholders to
exchange those notes that matured on October 6, 2009 (2009 Notes) with new notes issued by MIBV
with a maturity date on August 7, 2012 (2012 Notes).

Concurrently, on the same date, MIBV also issued a Consent Solicitation Memorandum whereby MIBV
has requested consent from the noteholders of 2009 Notes to waive certain covenants in the 2009
Notes.

The 2009 Notes amounted to USD79,800 have been exchanged with the 2012 Notes amounted to
USD83,428 in this Exchange Offer program.

Simultaneously with the Exchange Offer, on August 7, 2009, MIBV issued new notes (2012 Notes) that
will mature on the same date in August 2012, with a total face value of (including issuance of 2012
Notes and exchange offer of 2009 Notes) USD200,000 in USD100 denomination at the price of
97.532%, with the DB Trustees (Hong Kong) Limited (“DB”) as the trustee, and Citigroup Global
Markets Limited and UBS AG as Joint Lead Managers.
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19. NOTES PAYABLE (continued)

Notes USD200,000 matured in year 2012 (“2012 Notes”) (continued)

The 2012 Notes bear interest at the rate of 10.75% per annum, guaranteed by the Company and have
no collateral. At any time on or after August 7, 2010, MIBV may redeem the notes, in whole or in part,
at pre-determined prices.

The 2012 Notes have been rated “B1” by Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. and “B+” by Standard and
Poor’s Rating Group, a division of Mc Graw-Hill Companies, Inc and have been listed on the
Singapore Stock Exchange (“SGX-ST”).

The amortization of notes discount and issuance cost charged to operations for the year ended
December 31, 2009 amounted to Rp14,805.

Notes USD150,000 matured in year 2009 (“2009 Notes”)

On October 6, 2006, Matahari Finance B.V. (“MF”), a wholly-owned subsidiary, issued notes with a
total face value of USD150,000 (“2009 Notes”) in USD100 denomination at the price of 98.731%, with
the DB Trustees (Hong Kong) Limited as the trustee, and UBS AG and Credit Suisse Securities
(Europe) Limited as Joint Lead Managers.

The 2009 Notes matured on October 6, 2009 and bear interest at the rate of 9.5% per annum. Thus,
as of December 31, 2008, the 2009 Notes have been reclassified as part of Current Liabilities. The
2009 Notes are guaranteed by the Company and have no collateral. At any time on or after October 6,
2007, MF may redeem the 2009 Notes, in whole or in part, at pre-determined prices.

The 2009 Notes have been rated “B1” by Moody’s Investor Service, Inc. and “B+” by Standard &
Poor’s Rating Group, a division of Mc Graw-Hill Companies, Inc. and have been listed on SGX-ST.

In 2009 and 2008, the Companies repurchased the 2009 Notes with nominal value of USD5,380 and
USD29,650 from the market with purchase value of USD5,207 and USD26,906, respectively. The
difference amounting to Rp1,995 and Rp31,095 were credited to operations and presented under
“Other charges (income)” in the consolidated statements of income.

In 2009, MF instructed DB as the trustee to cancel and redeem the 2009 Notes with the total face
value of USD114,830 in relation with the Company’s buyback notes and exchange offer program.

The amortization of notes discount and issuance cost charged to operations for the years ended
December 31, 2009 and 2008 amounted to Rp14,741 and Rp28,128, respectively.

On October 5, 2009, MF fully repaid the remaining liabilities of the USD150,000 Notes.
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20. BANK LOANS

This account consists of the following third-party loans:

2008
(As restated,

2009 Note 3)

PT Bank Internasional Indonesia Tbk (“BII”) 500,000 200,000
PT Bank Negara Indonesia (Persero) Tbk (“BNI”) 430,000 500,000
PT Bank CIMB Niaga Tbk, (“CIMB”) 240,000 252,650
PT Bank Danamon Indonesia Tbk (“Danamon”) 235,000 235,000
PT Bank Mizuho Indonesia (“Mizuho”) 200,000 200,000
PT Bank Permata Tbk (“Permata”) 175,000 -
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking

Corporation Limited (“HSBC”) 135,000 150,000

Sub-total 1,915,000 1,537,650
Less current maturities 1,011,667 74,800

Long-term portion 903,333 1,462,850

BII

On December 13, 2007, the Company obtained from BII a revolving promissory loan facility amounting
to Rp200,000. The loan facility is available up to December 13, 2010. Therefore, as of December 31,
2009, all of the used loan facility is presented as “Current Maturities of Long-Term Debts - Bank
Loans”.

On December 17, 2009, the Company obtained from BII a medium term working capital loan facility
amounting to Rp300,000. The loan is payable in 6 quarterly installments. For the first five installments,
the Company will pay Rp15,000 each in quarterly starting September 2010 and Rp225,000 for the last
installment in December 2011. Therefore, as of December 31, 2009, the installments which will be paid
up to December 2010 are presented as “Current Maturities of Long-Term Debts - Bank Loans”.

As of December 31, 2009, the full amount of the facilities have been drawn down.

BNI

On September 21, 2006, the Company obtained from BNI a term loan facility with a maximum amount
of Rp500,000 which is available up to June 20, 2011.

On December 24, 2008, the Company drew down the full amount of the facility amounting to
Rp500,000. The loan is payable in 7 quarterly installments. For the first six installments, the Company
will pay Rp70,000 each in quarterly starting December 24, 2009 and Rp80,000 for the last installment
on June 20, 2011. Therefore, as of December 31, 2009, the installments which will be paid up to
December 2010 are presented as “Current Maturities of Long-Term Debts - Bank Loans”.

As of December 31, 2009, the full amount of the facility has been drawn down.
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20. BANK LOANS (continued)

CIMB

On August 29, 2002, PT Matahari Department Store Tbk (“PT MDS”), a Subsidiary, obtained from
CIMB a working capital loan facility. This loan facility has been amended several times, where in the
last amendment on August 25, 2006, CIMB has given PT MDS 2 fixed installment facilities amounted
to Rp30,250 that is available up to July 26, 2011. The facility is secured by the proceeds of future sale
of PT Lippo Securities Tbk shares that is owned by PT MDS and all of PT MDS’s receivables to third
parties.

In November 2009, the above loan has been repaid.

On December 13, 2007, the Company obtained from CIMB a Fixed Loan on Demand 3 facility
amounting to Rp240,000. The loan facility is available up to December 13, 2011.

As of December 31, 2009, the full amount of the facility has been drawn down.

Danamon

On September 8, 2006 and September 19, 2006, the Company obtained from Danamon two revolving
working capital loan facilities amounting to Rp125,000 and Rp110,000, respectively. The facilities have
been extended up to July 31, 2010. Therefore, as of December 31, 2009, all of the used loan facilities
are presented as “Current Maturities of Long-Term Debts - Bank Loans”.

As of December 31, 2009, the full amount of the facilities have been drawn down.

Mizuho

On April 20, 2007, the Company obtained from Mizuho a revolving working capital loan facility
amounting to Rp100,000. The credit facility has been extended up to September 28, 2010 and the
amount was increased to Rp200,000. Therefore, as of December 31, 2009, all of the used loan facility
is presented as “Current Maturities of Long-Term Debts - Bank Loans”.

As of December 31, 2009, the full amount of the facility has been drawn down.

Permata

On March 30, 2009, the Company obtained from Permata a revolving loan facility amounted to
Rp50,000, which is available up to March 30, 2011 and a term loan facility amounted to Rp100,000,
which is available up to April 30, 2012.

On March 30, 2009, the Company drew down the full amount of term loan facility. The term loan facility
is payable in 36 monthly installments in the amount of Rp2,778 each starting April 2009. Therefore, as
of December 31, 2009, the installments which will be paid up to December 2010 are presented as
“Current Maturities of Long-Term Debts - Bank Loans”.

On December 23, 2009, the Company obtained from Permata a new term loan facility amounted to
Rp100,000 and an additional revolving loan facility amounted to Rp20,000. The term loan facility is
available up to December 30, 2012, while the revolving loan facility is available up to March 30, 2011.

On December 28, 2009, the Company drew down the full amount of the new term loan facility. This
loan is payable in 36 monthly installments in the amount of Rp2,778 each starting January 2010.
Therefore, as of December 31, 2009, the installments which will paid up to December 2010 are
presented as “Current Maturities of Long-Term Debts - Bank Loans”.

As of December 31, 2009, the facilities that have not been utilized amounted to Rp70,000 (Note 38).
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20. BANK LOANS (continued)

HSBC

On September 19, 2006, the Company obtained a working capital loan facility from HSBC with a
principal amount of Rp150,000 (or its U.S. dollar equivalent up to a maximum of USD15,000). This
facility is available up to December 19, 2011.

On December 24, 2009, the Company made payment amounted to Rp15,000 to HSBC, as a result of
the loan facility adjustment to USD15,000.

As of December 31, 2009, the full amount of the facility has been drawn down.

In September 2006, the Company obtained a cross currency swap facility amounting to USD29,000
from HSBC which is to be used to hedge the Company’s currency fluctuation exposure. On July 26,
2007, the cross currency swap facility was reduced to USD10,000 and is available up to June 30,
2010.

For all the above facilities, the Company’ loans bear interest at annual rates ranging from 9.6% to
16.5% in 2009 and from 7.3% to 16.75% in 2008. The Company is required to comply with certain
conditions, which all of the conditions have been met as of December 31, 2009 and 2008. The loans
obtained by the Company from the facilities are unsecured.

21. BONDS PAYABLE

Bonds payable consist of the following:
2009 2008

Third Matahari Bonds in Year 2009 with Fixed Rates 302,000 -
Second Matahari Sukuk Ijarah in Year 2009 226,000 -
Second Matahari Bonds in Year 2004 with Fixed Rates - 300,000
First Matahari Syariah Ijarah Bonds in Year 2004 - 150,000

Nominal value 528,000 450,000
Treasury bonds - (7,000)

Balance 528,000 443,000
Unamortized bonds issuance cost (6,193) (1,360)

Net 521,807 441,640
Less current maturities - net - 441,640

Long-term portion - net 521,807 -

Third Matahari Bonds in Year 2009 with Fixed Rates and Second Matahari Sukuk Ijarah in Year 2009

On April 14, 2009, the Company issued Third Matahari Bonds in Year 2009 with Fixed Rates (“Third
Matahari Bonds”) and Second Matahari Sukuk Ijarah in Year 2009 (“Second Matahari Sukuk Ijarah”),
with details as follows:

� Third Matahari Bonds Series A, with total face value of Rp250,000 in Rp5 denomination. The
bonds bear interest at the fixed rate of 16% per annum for 3 years, starting April 14, 2009 and will
mature on April 14, 2012;
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21. BONDS PAYABLE (continued)

Third Matahari Bonds in Year 2009 with Fixed Rates and Second Matahari Sukuk Ijarah in Year 2009
(continued)

� Third Matahari Bonds Series B, with total face value of Rp52,000 in Rp5 denomination. The bonds
bear interest at fixed rate of 17% per annum for 5 years, starting April 14, 2009 and will mature on
April 14, 2014;

� Second Matahari Sukuk Ijarah Series A, with total face value of Rp90,000 in Rp5 denomination.
Each bondholder is entitled to “Ijarah fee” amounted to Rp160 per annum for each Rp1,000. The
fee shall be paid for 3 years starting April 14, 2009. The bonds will mature on April 14, 2012; and

� Second Matahari Sukuk Ijarah Series B, with total face value of Rp136,000 in Rp5 denomination.
Each bondholder is entitled to “Ijarah fee” amounted to Rp170 per annum for each Rp1,000. The
fee shall be paid for 5 years starting April 14, 2009. The bonds will mature on April 14, 2014.

PT Kustodian Sentral Efek Indonesia (“KSEI”), acting as the payment agent, pays quarterly interest on
the bonds for Third Matahari Bonds and “Ijarah fee” for Second Matahari Sukuk Ijarah with details as
follows:

� Third Matahari Bonds Series A, starting July 14, 2009 until April 14, 2012;
� Third Matahari Bonds Series B, starting July 14, 2009 until April 14, 2014;
� Second Matahari Sukuk Ijarah Series A, starting July 14, 2009 until April 14, 2012; and
� Second Matahari Sukuk Ijarah Series B, starting July 14, 2009 until April 14, 2014.

The ratings given by PT Pemeringkat Efek Indonesia are idA+ (Stable Outlook) for Third Matahari
Bonds and idA+(sy) (Stable Outlook) for the Second Matahari Sukuk Ijarah at the time the bonds were
issued.

PT Bank Mega Tbk acts as trustee for the Third Matahari Bonds and Second Matahari Sukuk Ijarah.

The Company’s bonds listing on the Indonesia Stock Exchange (“BEI”) were approved on the basis of
the BEI Decision Letter No. Peng-00347/BEI.PSU/04-2009 dated April 14, 2009.

The Third Matahari Bonds and Second Matahari Sukuk Ijarah will not be secured with a specific
collateral.

The proceeds of the Third Matahari Bonds had been earmarked to be used for refinancing the Second
Matahari Bonds which has matured on May 11, 2009.

The proceeds of the Second Matahari Sukuk Ijarah had been earmarked to be used for the lease of
store spaces which had been determined in “Akad Wakalah”.

Based on the Bonds Indenture, the Company is required to comply with certain conditions, which all of
the conditions have been met as of December 31, 2009.

The amortization of bonds issuance cost charged to operations for the year ended December 31, 2009
amounted to Rp1,690.

If the bonds’ annual rating downgraded below idA- for the Third Matahari Bonds and idA-(sy) for the
Second Matahari Sukuk Ijarah, the Company should provide a sinking fund in the occurrence year and
in the following years for as long as the rating remains at below idA- and idA-(sy) respectively, in
amounts determined as follows:

� First year, 10% of the face value of the Third Matahari Bonds or Second Matahari Sukuk Ijarah; or
� Second year, cumulative 15% of the face value of the Third Matahari Bonds or Second Matahari

Sukuk Ijarah; or
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21. BONDS PAYABLE (continued)

Third Matahari Bonds in Year 2009 with Fixed Rates and Second Matahari Sukuk Ijarah in Year 2009
(continued)

� Third year, cumulative 20% of the face value of the Third Matahari Bonds or Second Matahari
Sukuk Ijarah; or

� Fourth year, cumulative 25% of the face value of the Third Matahari Bonds or Second Matahari
Sukuk Ijarah; or

� Fifth year, cumulative 30% of the face value of the Third Matahari Bonds or Second Matahari
Sukuk Ijarah.

Second Matahari Bonds in Year 2004 with Fixed Rates and First Matahari Syariah Ijarah Bonds in
Year 2004

On May 11, 2004, the Company issued Second Matahari Bonds in Year 2004 with Fixed Rates
(“Second Matahari Bonds”) and First Matahari Syariah Ijarah Bonds in Year 2004 (“First Matahari
Syariah Ijarah Bonds”), with PT Bank Negara Indonesia (Persero) Tbk (“BNI”) as the trustee. The
bonds have total face values of Rp300,000 and Rp150,000, respectively, in Rp50 denomination and
matured onMay 11, 2009. Thus, in 2008 the Second Matahari Bonds and First Matahari Syariah Ijarah
Bonds have been presented as “Current Maturities of Long-term Debts - Bonds Payable - net”.
The 2008 ratings were idA+ (Stable Outlook) for the Second Matahari Bonds and idA+(sy) (Stable
Outlook) for the First Matahari Syariah Ijarah Bonds.

The Company’s bonds listing on the Surabaya Stock Exchange (“BES”) was approved on the basis of
the BES Decision Letter No. JKT-007/LIST-EMITEN/BES/V/2004 dated May 10, 2004.

The Second Matahari Bonds bear interest at the fixed rate of 13.8% per annum for 5 years starting
May 11, 2004. KSEI, acting as the payment agent, pays quarterly interest on the bonds starting
August 11, 2004 until May 11, 2009.

Each bondholder of First Matahari Syariah Ijarah is entitled to “Ijarah fee” at 13.8% per annum. The fee
shall be paid for 5 years starting May 11, 2004. KSEI, acting as the payment agent, pays quarterly
Ijarah fee starting August 11, 2004 until May 11, 2009.

The bonds are collateralized by certain landrights and buildings with fair value representing 115% of
the total face value of the bonds.

The proceeds of the Second Matahari Bonds were used for the opening of new stores and the
renovation of the existing ones and for the Company’s working capital requirements, such as for the
purchase of merchandise inventories.

The proceeds of the First Matahari Syariah Ijarah Bonds were used for the lease of store spaces which
were determined in “Akad Wakalah”.

Based on the Bonds Indenture, the Company is required to comply with certain conditions.

The amortization of bonds issuance cost charged to operations for the years ended December 31,
2009 and 2008 amounted to Rp1,360 and Rp3,496, respectively.

On November 30, 2006, the Company held the General Bondholders’ Meeting of Second Matahari
Bonds in Year 2004 and First Matahari Syariah Ijarah Bonds in Year 2004 to approve the changes in
the Bonds Indenture and to accept the resignation of BNI as trustee and bond collateral agent, and
approve the appointment of PT Bank Mega Tbk to replace BNI as trustee and bond collateral agent.

In 2008, the Company repurchased Second Matahari Bonds with nominal value of Rp7,000 from the
market with purchase value of Rp7,058. The difference amounting to Rp58 was charged to operations
and is presented under “Other charges (income)” in the consolidated statements of income.
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21. BONDS PAYABLE (continued)

Second Matahari Bonds in Year 2004 with Fixed Rates and First Matahari Syariah Ijarah Bonds in
Year 2004 (continued)

On May 8, 2009, the Company has fully repaid the Second Matahari Bonds and First Matahari Syariah
Ijarah Bonds.

22. SWAP, OPTION AND FORWARD TRANSACTIONS

The Company utilizes derivative instruments to manage exposure to foreign currency and interest rate
movements. The outstanding derivative instruments as of December 31, 2008, mainly consist of cross
currency swaps and options contract which were expired in October 2009.

The cross currency swaps require periodic exchange of payments based on the interest rate in
U.S. Dollar and Japanese Yen on total notional amounts, and final exchange of payments or net
settlement of the notional (principal) amount on maturity date of the contracts. The options contract
require option premium payments at certain dates and the right to purchase and sell Japanese Yen at
certain strike prices.

As of December 31, 2008, the fair value of the derivative contracts amounted to Rp286,550 (equivalent
to USD19,878 and JPY568,205) and Rp495,230 (equivalent to USD45,226), respectively, which are
presented as “Option/forward contract assets” and “Swap contract liabilities” in the consolidated
balance sheets. The net change in fair value of the Company’s derivative contracts, including the effect
of interest income/expense, is recorded in the consolidated statements of income as part of “Other
charges (income) - net”.

23. CAPITAL STOCK

Starting October 11, 2000, the Company’s shares have been traded on a scripless basis on the stock
exchanges.

The Company’s stockholders as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 are as follows:

Number of
Shares Issued and Percentage of

Fully Paid Ownership Amount

2009
PT Multipolar Tbk 2,261,708,003 50.0102 1,130,854
PT Star Pacific Tbk 306,770,000 6.7832 153,385
Others - public (below 5% each) 1,954,011,572 43.2066 977,006

Sub-total 4,522,489,575 100.0000 2,261,245
Treasury stock 198,584,000 99,292

Total 4,721,073,575 2,360,537

2008
PT Multipolar Tbk 2,261,208,003 50.1006 1,130,604
PT Star Pacific Tbk 306,770,000 6.7970 153,385
Others - public (below 5% each) 1,945,359,997 43.1024 972,680

Sub-total 4,513,338,000 100.0000 2,256,669
Treasury stock 198,584,000 99,292

Total 4,711,922,000 2,355,961
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23. CAPITAL STOCK (continued)

As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, no Company’s stockholders are part of the Company’s
management.

In the Company’s Stockholders’ Extraordinary Meeting held on January 8, 2002 the minutes of which
are notarized under deed No. 19 dated January 8, 2002 of Ny. Poerbaningsih Adi Warsito, S.H., the
stockholders resolved to, among others, approve the buy-back of the Company’s shares held by the
public in accordance with BAPEPAM-LK Regulation No. XI.B.2 during an 18-month period, under the
following conditions:

- The maximum total number of the buy-back shares was 270,599,400 shares or 10% of the
Company’s issued and fully paid capital stock.

- The maximum fund for the shares buy-back program was Rp270,600, which included transaction
fee, broker’s fee and other expenses incurred on the buy-back transactions.

For the execution of the shares buy-back, the Company appointed PT Ciptadana Securities, an
affiliate, as the broker.

The Company’s shares buy-back program ended on July 9, 2003. As of this date, the Company had
bought 198,584,000 (73.39% of maximum total buy-back shares allowed) of its shares from the market
for Rp123,236.

Based on the minutes of the Stockholders’ Extraordinary Meeting as notarized under Deed No. 77
dated December 27, 2006 of Ny. Poerbaningsih Adi Warsito, S.H., the stockholders approved the
issuance, through the Fourth Limited Public Offering with pre-emptive rights to stockholders, of
2,005,928,000 (at Rp500 per share) new shares and a maximum of 877,593,500 Series I warrants that
will be given for free as an incentive to the stockholders that exercise their rights. Each 16 new shares
purchased from the Fourth Limited Public Offering will get 7 Series I warrants which can be used to
buy new shares at the price of Rp900 per share. The warrants can be exercised starting April 11, 2008
up to July 12, 2010. On January 11, 2007, the new shares were listed on the Jakarta Stock Exchange
and Surabaya Stock Exchange.

As of December 31, 2009, the warrants that have been exercised into stocks amounted to 9,151,575
units.

24. ADDITIONAL PAID-IN CAPITAL - NET

The details of this account as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 are as follows:

2009 2008

Premium on capital stock from:
- First Limited Public Offering with pre-emptive rights

to the stockholders 30,067 30,067
- Conversion of bonds into shares of Stock 144 144
- Exercise of warrants into share of Stock 3,661 -
Stock issuance costs (51,409) (51,409)

Net (17,537) (21,198)

Stock issuance costs arising from the Company’s First, Second, Third and Fourth Limited Public
Offerings with pre-emptive rights to the stockholders amounted to Rp1,312, Rp2,475, Rp32,780 and
Rp14,842, respectively.
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25. SALES FROM DIRECT PURCHASE AND OTHER TRADE REVENUE

This account mainly represents sales in the Companies’ stores which include PT Matahari Department
Store Tbk, PT Matahari Super Ekonomi and family entertainment centers known as Time Zone.

The details of sales from direct purchase and other trade revenue based on business segment are as
follows:

2009 2008

Supermarket/hypermarket 6,188,456 5,421,327
Department stores 2,198,808 1,962,301
Family entertainment centers 289,812 313,745
Others 81,643 41,112

Total 8,758,719 7,738,485

There were no individual sales which exceeded 10% of net sales for the years ended December 31,
2009 and 2008.

26. CONSIGNMENT SALES

This account mainly represents consignment sales from department stores.

27. COST OF CONSIGNMENT SALES

This account mainly represents cost of consignment sales to consignors.

28. COST OF SALES

The details of cost of sales are as follows:

2009 2008

Merchandise inventories at beginning of year 983,008 906,377
Net purchases 6,897,116 5,965,643

Merchandise inventories available for sale 7,880,124 6,872,020
Merchandise inventories at end of year 1,171,805 983,008

Cost of sales before bakery overhead 6,708,319 5,889,012
Bakery overhead 16,061 14,451

Cost of Sales 6,724,380 5,903,463

There were no purchases of merchandise inventory from any supplier which exceeded 10% of net
sales for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008.
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29. SELLING EXPENSES

The details of selling expenses are as follows:

2009 2008

Rental - net of rental income of Rp73,501 in 2009
and Rp64,840 in 2008 801,142 699,989

Marketing - net 136,345 83,019
Supplies 106,813 98,962
Credit card charges 64,996 55,739

Total 1,109,296 937,709

30. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

The details of general and administrative expenses are as follows:

2008
(As restated,

2009 Note 3)

Salaries and employee benefits (Note 32) 877,871 797,476
Depreciation (Note 11) 402,596 326,491
Electricity and energy 300,987 270,305
Consultant fees 72,330 72,423
Taxes and licenses 55,758 45,719
Amortization 55,561 35,419
Insurance 44,613 39,508
Traveling 38,053 34,174
Telephone and telex 27,681 27,451
Others 67,058 46,181

Total 1,942,508 1,695,147

31. INTEREST EXPENSE AND OTHER FINANCING COST - NET

This account consists of the following:

2008
(As restated,

2009 Note 3)

Interest expense and other financing cost 611,563 413,137
Interest income (347,695) (238,042)

Net 263,868 175,095



These consolidated financial statements are originally issued in Indonesian language.

PT MATAHARI PUTRA PRIMA Tbk AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended December 31, 2009
With Comparative Figures for the Year ended December 31, 2008

(Expressed in millions of Indonesian rupiah and thousands of foreign currencies,
except share data/unit)

51

32. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

The Company and Subsidiaries recognized provision for termination, gratuity and compensation
benefits of employees amounting to Rp34,641 and Rp29,853 (net of payments of Rp13,984 and
Rp19,656) for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. As of December 31, 2009
and 2008, the provision was determined based on Labor Law No. 13/2003 dated March 25, 2003.
Such benefits are included as part of general and administrative expenses (salaries and employee
benefits) in the consolidated statements of income.

The above provisions (the Company, PT MDS, PT MGF and PT TPI) were determined based on
actuarial calculations as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, prepared by PT Dayamandiri
Dharmakonsilindo, an independent actuary, adopting the Projected-Unit-Credit method with the
following assumptions:

Annual discount rate : 10.5% in 2009 and 12% in 2008
Annual salary increase rate : 10%
Table of mortality : Commissioners Standard Ordinary 1980 (CSO’80)
Disability rate : 10% of mortality rate
Retirement rate : 100% at normal retirement age
Resignation rate : 2-9% per annum at age 20 up to age 54
Normal retirement age : 55 years old

The cost of employee benefits consists of the following:

2008
(As restated,

2009 Note 3)

Current service cost 17,979 16,913
Interest cost 21,476 14,871
Amortization of unrecognized past service

cost - non-vested benefits 2,516 2,508
Liability relating to past service of new employees 1,025 -
Amortization of actuarial loss (gain) (252) 68

Net 42,744 34,360
Compensation 5,881 15,149

Total 48,625 49,509

Movements in the liability for employee benefits as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 are as follows:

2008
(As restated,

2009 Note 3)

Balance at beginning of year 162,904 133,051
Provision during the year 48,625 49,509
Payments during the year (13,984) (19,656)

Balance at end of year 197,545 162,904
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33. MONETARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES DENOMINATED IN FOREIGN CURRENCIES

The Companies’ monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies as of December 31, 2009 and
2008 are as follows:

Amount in Foreign Rupiah
Currencies Equivalent

2009
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents USD 39,792 374,045

SGD 877 5,875
Euro 154 2,080
HKD 681 826
RMB 130 180
JPY 1,202 122

Short-term investments USD 9,317 87,580
SGD 93 625

Total assets 471,333

Liabilities
Accounts payable - others SGD 93 625
Notes payable USD 200,000 1,880,000
Current maturities of long-term debts -

others USD 65 611
Long-term debts - net of current

maturities - others USD 429 4,033
Other non-current liabilities USD 1,918 18,029

Total liabilities 1,903,298

Liabilities - net 1,431,965

2008
(As restated, Note 3)
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents SGD 13,982 106,366

USD 663 7,260
Euro 90 1,389
JPY 11,371 1,379
HKD 686 969
RMB 142 229

Short-term investments SGD 40,730 309,849
USD 3,290 36,026

Option/forward contract assets USD 19,878 217,667
JPY 568,205 68,883

Total assets 750,017
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33. MONETARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES DENOMINATED IN FOREIGN CURRENCIES (continued)

Amount in Foreign Rupiah
Currencies Equivalent

2008 (continued)
(As restated, Note 3)
Liabilities
Accounts payable - others SGD 40,730 309,849
Notes payable USD 120,350 1,317,833
Current maturities of long-term debts -

others USD 65 712
Swap contract liabilities USD 45,226 495,230
Long-term debts - net of current

maturities - others USD 429 4,698
Other non-current liabilities USD 1,918 21,002

Total liabilities 2,149,324

Liabilities - net 1,399,307

In managing the risk of monetary assets and liabili ties denominated in foreign currencies, the
Company used swap, option and forward financial instruments to handle the risk related with foreign
currency fluctuation (Notes 2s and 22).

34. DISTRIBUTION OF INCOME AND APPROPRIATION OF RETAINED EARNINGS

In the Company’s Stockholders’ Annual General Meeting held on April 24, 2009 the minutes of which
are notarized under deed No. 49 of Ny. Poerbaningsih Adi Warsito, S.H., the stockholders resolved to,
among others, to appropriate Rp2,000 from retained earnings as a general reserve.

In the Company’s Stockholders’ Annual General Meeting held on March 19, 2008 the minutes of which
are notarized under deed No. 36 of Ny. Poerbaningsih Adi Warsito, S.H., the stockholders resolved to,
among others, declare cash dividend amounting to Rp51,903 or Rp11.5 (full amount) per share,
payable to stockholders listed in the stockholders’ register as of April 18, 2008 and to appropriate
Rp2,000 from retained earnings as a general reserve.

35. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCY

COMMITMENTS

a. In March 2001, the Company entered into a license agreement with IGA, Inc. (“IGA”), whereby IGA
authorized and licensed the Company to use the IGA trademarks (1) to identify the Company as
an IGA member, (2) in connection with the distribution and promotion of products with the quality
standards established by IGA, solely in the Company’s stores, and rendering of services relating to
IGA systems in those stores, and (3) in connection with the procurement and labelling of products
with the quality standards established by IGA.

On the same date, the Company entered into a service agreement with IGA to obtain service and
support from IGA, including guidance and counsel, international public relations assistance, and
attendance at major key events. As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company recognized
license fee amounted to Rp255 and Rp395, respectively.
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35. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCY (continued)

COMMITMENTS (continued)

b. In December 2002, the Company entered into a management agreement with PT Matahari Graha
Fantasi (“PT MGF”), a Subsidiary, whereby the Company agreed to provide management
consultation services to PT MGF. The Company earns an annual management fee as
compensation, which is computed at a certain percentage of the gross revenue of PT MGF. The
agreement is effective for a 12-year period starting January 1, 2003.

The related reciprocal management fee income and expense amounting to Rp3,610 and Rp2,222
for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, have been eliminated in the
consolidated financial statements.

c. In January 2003, PT MGF entered into a “Business System License Agreement” with Avel Pty.
Limited, Australia (licensor) whereby the licensor granted PT MGF the exclusive right in Indonesia
to use the “Timezone Business System”. The licensor earns an annual royalty as compensation,
which is computed at a certain percentage of the gross revenue of PT MGF. The agreement is
effective for a 12-year period starting January 1, 2003.

The royalty fees charged to current operations as part of “Selling Expenses (Marketing)” amounted
to Rp7,941 and Rp4,888 for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

d. In August 2004, the Company entered into a lease agreement with PT Donindo Menara Utama
covering lease of store space with a floor area of 9,000 square meters in Grand Menara Mall,
Banjarmasin. The lease period covers 11 years to start at the opening day of the store and is
extendable. As required in the agreement, the Company made rental deposit amounting to
Rp1,500 as of December 31, 2009, which is presented as part of “Other Non-current Assets”. In
October 2009, the Company transferred partially the lease rights and obligations of store with a
floor area of 5,000 square meters to PT Matahari Department Store Tbk (“PT MDS”), a Subsidiary.
The store has not opened yet as of December 31, 2009.

e. In December 2004, the Company entered into a “Software License Agreement” with PT Accenture
whereby PT Accenture granted to the Company a non-transferable and non-exclusive license to
utilize the licensed software program for the entire duration of the agreement. The agreement
commenced in December 2004 and shall be perpetual unless terminated by PT Accenture. In
addition, the Company entered into a “Consulting Service Agreement” whereby PT Accenture will
assist the Company in implementing selected “Retek” application modules. The service is for 18
months. The Company shall pay service fee as compensation for the services over a certain
agreed period. As of December 31, 2009, the Company has paid USD4,000 for the license fee and
USD4,392 for the consultation, which are presented as part of “Other Non-current Assets”.

f. In February 2007, the Company entered into a lease agreement with PT Gerbang Perkasa
covering a store with floor area of 20,343 square meters in Boutique Mall Yogya. The lease period
covers 15 years to start on the opening day of the store with total rental charge of Rp129,000. As
required in the agreement, the Company has made the rental payment amounting to Rp129,000
as of December 31, 2009, which is presented as part of “Rental Advances”.

Based on the addendum of the lease agreement that was signed in October 2008, due to delay in
the hand-over of the store space, the Company accept the hand over not later than June 2010,
and will receive, as compensation, additional 4 years’ lease period and will also receive
compensation for participation fee amounting to Rp3,800 which will be received in an insta llment
starting from the opening day of the store. The store has not opened yet as of December 31, 2009.
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35. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCY (continued)

COMMITMENTS (continued)

g. In March 2007, the Company entered into a lease agreement with PT Lingkar Indah Kencana
covering a store with floor area of 13,233 square meters in The Great Town Square, Sidoarjo. The
lease period covers 20 years to start on the opening day of the store with total rental charge of
Rp78,241. As required in the agreement, the Company has made the rental payment amounting to
Rp78,241 as of December 31, 2009, which is presented as part of “Rental Advances”.

Based on the addendum of the lease agreement that was signed in November 2008, due to delay
in the hand-over of the store space, the Company accept the hand over not later than December
2011 and will receive, as compensation, additional 6 years’ lease period and will also receive
compensation for participation fee amounting to Rp2,300 which will be received in an installment
starting from the opening day of the store. The store has not opened yet as of December 31, 2009.

h. In March 2007, the Company entered into a lease agreement with PT Perisai Emas covering a
store with floor area of 15,267 square meters in Kuta Beach, Bali. The lease period covers 20
years to start on the opening day of the store with total rental charge of Rp214,827. As required in
the agreement, the Company has made the rental payment amounting to Rp214,827 as of
December 31, 2009, which is presented as part of “Rental Advances”.

Based on the addendum of the lease agreement that was signed in October 2008, due to delay in
the hand-over of the store space, the Company accept the hand over not later than October 2010
and will receive, as compensation, additional 4 years’ lease period and will also receive
compensation for participation fee amounting to Rp6,400 which will be received in an installment
starting from the opening day of the store. The store has not opened yet as of December 31, 2009.

i. In April 2007, the Company entered into a lease term-sheet with PT Cakrawala Sakti Kencana
covering a store with floor area of 7,350 square meters in Paragon City, Semarang. The lease
period covers 12 years to start on the opening day of the store. As required in the term-sheet, the
Company made rental deposit amounting to Rp1,103 as of December 31, 2009, which is
presented as part of “Other Non-current Assets”. The store has not opened yet as of
December 31, 2009.

In November 2007, the Company entered into a lease term-sheet with PT Cakrawala Sakti
Kencana covering a store with floor area of 8,672 square meters in Paragon City, Semarang. The
lease period covers 11 years to start on the opening day of the store and is extendable. As
required in the term-sheet, the Company made the rental payment and rental deposit amounting to
Rp3,468 and Rp1,561 as of December 31, 2009, which are presented as part of “Rental
Advances” and “Other Non-current Assets”, respectively. In October 2009, the Company
transferred the lease rights and obligations to PT MDS, a Subsidiary. The store has not opened yet
as of December 31, 2009.

j. In July and November 2007, the Company entered into a lease term-sheet with PT Gaya
Kreasindo Permai covering a store with floor area of 14,715 square meters in Jakarta. The lease
period covers 11 years. The store has not opened yet as of December 31, 2009.

k. In August 2007, the Company entered into a lease agreement with PT Menara Bhumimegah
covering lease of a store with floor area of 19,795 square meters in Jakarta. The lease period
covers 20 years with total rental charge of Rp286,433. As required in the agreement, the Company
made rental payment amounting to Rp286,433 as of December 31, 2009, which is presented as
part of “Rental Advances”. The store has not opened yet as of December 31, 2009.
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35. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCY (continued)

COMMITMENTS (continued)

l. On October 18, 2007, the Company, together with HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Singapore)
Limited (“HSBC”, as trustee of Lippo-Mapletree Indonesia Retail Trust, called Option Holder),
Detos Properties Pte. Ltd (“Detos”) and Matos Properties Pte. Ltd. (“Matos”), both stockholders of
PT Megah Detos Utama (“PT MDU”), entered into a put option agreement whereby, if in the
following 2 (two) years from the listing date of the LMIR Trust units on the Singapore Stock
Exchange, PT MDU does not acquire the strata titles of the property purchased from the
Company, Option Holder has an option to request the Company to repurchase shares of Detos at
the Average of Valuations conducted by Valuers or the Valuation Amount at the initial offering of
the LMIR Trust units, whichever is higher. As of December 31, 2009, from total area 13,045 square
meters in Depok, 12,714.45 square meters has been transferred to PT MDU and the remaining
330.55 square meters still in process (Note 11).

m. In February 2008, the Company entered into a lease term-sheet with PT Pakuwon Jati Tbk
covering a store with floor area of 7,099 square meters in Pakuwon Town Square, Surabaya. The
lease period covers 11 years to start on the opening day of the store. As required in the term-
sheet, the Company has made rental payment amounting to Rp3,067 as of December 31, 2009,
which is presented as part of “Rental Advances”. The store has not opened yet as of
December 31, 2009.

n. In March 2008, the Company entered into a lease agreement with PT Trimitra Exelindo Utama
Karya covering a store with floor area of 20,000 square meters in Setiabudi Signature, Semarang.
The lease period covers 15 years to start on the opening day of the store with total rental charge of
Rp113,353. As required in the agreement, the Company has made rental payment amounting to
Rp113,353 as of December 31, 2009, which is presented as part of “Rental Advances”. The store
has not opened yet as of December 31, 2009.

o. In March 2008, the Company entered into a lease agreement with PT Bima Mitra Utama Energi
covering land and building with floor area of 9,968 square meters in Cempaka Putih, Jakarta. The
lease period covers 10 years to start on the opening day of the store with total rental charge of
Rp117,682. As required in the agreement, the Company has made rental payment amounting to
Rp117,682 as of December 31, 2009, which is presented as part of “Rental Advances”. The store
has not opened yet as of December 31, 2009.

p. In March 2008, the Company re-entered into a lease agreement with PT Rangkai Ribu Paremas
covering a store with floor area of 14,000 square meters in Arteri Simpruk, Jakarta. The lease
period covers 15 years to start on the opening day of the store with total rental charge of
Rp154,433. As required in the agreement, the Company has made rental payment amounting to
Rp154,433 as of December 31, 2009, which is presented as part of “Rental Advances”. The store
has not opened yet as of December 31, 2009.

q. In March 2008, the Company entered into a lease term-sheet with PT Win Win Realty Centre
covering a store with floor area of 6,855 square meters in Ciputra World, Surabaya. The lease
period covers 12 years to start on the opening day of the store. As required in the term-sheet, the
Company has made rental payment amounting to Rp2,056 as of December 31, 2009, which is
presented as part of “Rental Advances”. The store has not opened yet as of December 31, 2009.

r. In June 2008, the Company entered into a lease term-sheet with PT Karya Bersama Takarob
covering a store with floor area of 6,187 square meters in Cirebon Superblock Mall. The lease
period covers 11 years to start on the opening day of the store. As required in the term-sheet, the
Company has made rental payment amounting to Rp2,784 as of December 31, 2009, which is
presented as part of “Rental Advances”. The store has not opened yet as of December 31, 2009.
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35. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCY (continued)

COMMITMENTS (continued)

In September 2008, the Company entered into an additional lease term-sheet with PT Karya
Bersama Takarob covering a store with floor area of 5,500 square meters in Cirebon Superblock
Mall. The lease period covers 11 years to start on the opening day of the store. As required in the
term-sheet, the Company has made rental payment and deposit amounting to Rp5,000 and Rp990
as of December 31, 2009, which are presented as part of “Rental Advances” and “Other non-
current Assets”, respectively. In October 2009, the Company transferred the lease rights and
obligations of a store with floor area of 5,500 square meters to PT MDS, a Subsidiary. The store
has not opened yet as of December 31, 2009.

s. In September 2008, the Company entered into a lease agreement with PT Khatulistiwa Multipromo
covering a store with floor area of 19,660 square meters in Salemba, Jakarta. The lease period
covers 15 years to start on the opening day of the store with total rental charge of Rp196,600. As
required in the agreement, the Company has made rental payment amounting to Rp196,600 as of
December 31, 2009, which is presented as part of “Rental Advances”. The store has not opened
yet as of December 31, 2009.

t. In September 2008, the Company entered into a lease agreement with PT Inovasi Ragam Abadi
covering a store with floor area of 10,789 square meters in Kuta Central Park, Bali. The lease
period covers 15 years to start on the opening day of the store with total rental charge of
Rp140,956. As required in the agreement, the Company has made rental payment amounting to
Rp140,956 as of December 31, 2009, which is presented as part of “Rental Advances”. The store
has not opened yet as of December 31, 2009.

u. In September 2008, the Company entered into a lease agreement with PT Sitryco Riwani Jaya
covering a store with floor area of 22,739 square meters in Surabaya Junction, Surabaya. The
lease period covers 20 years to start on the opening day of the store with total rental charge of
Rp197,716. As required in the agreement, the Company has made rental payment amounting to
Rp197,716 as of December 31, 2009, which is presented as part of “Rental Advances”. The store
has not opened yet as of December 31, 2009.

v. On November 12, 2008, the Company entered into a lease agreement with PT Mandiri Cipta
Gemilang covering a store with floor area of 24,858.91 square meters in Jakarta. The lease period
covers 20 years to start on the opening day of the store with total rental charge of Rp324,260. The
Company has made payment amounting to Rp324,260 as of December 31, 2009, which is
presented as part of “Rental Advances”. The store has not opened yet as of December 31, 2009.

w. On January 27, 2009, the Company entered into a lease term-sheet with PT Papetra Perkasa
Utama covering a store with floor area of 5,800 square meters in Blue Banter City Walk in,
Manado. The lease period covers 11 years to start on the opening day of the store. As required in
the term-sheet, the Company has made rental payment and deposit amounting to Rp2,088 and
Rp1,001 as of December 31, 2009, which are presented as part of “Rental Advances” and “Other
non-current Assets”, respectively. In October 2009, the Company transferred the lease rights and
obligations to PT MDS, a Subsidiary. The store has not opened yet as of December 31, 2009.

On August 26, 2009, the Company entered into a lease agreement with PT Papetra Perkasa
Utama covering a store with floor area of 7,300 square meters in Blue Banter City Walk in,
Manado. The lease period covers 11 years to start on the opening day of the store with total rental
charge of Rp14,016. As required in the lease agreement, the Company has made rental payment
amounting to Rp10,512 as of December 31, 2009, which is presented as part of “Rental
Advances”. The store has not opened yet as of December 31, 2009.
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35. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCY (continued)

COMMITMENTS (continued)

x. On August 25, 2009, the Company entered into a lease term-sheet with PT Gerbang Nusa
Perkasa covering a store with floor area of 4,200 square meters in Manado Town Square. The
lease period covers 11 years to start on the opening day of the store. The store has not opened
yet as of December 31, 2009.

y. On August 31, 2009, the Company entered into a lease term-sheet with PT Wulandari Bangun
Laksana covering a store with floor area of 5,000 square maters in e-Walk@Balikpapan
Superblock. The lease period covers 11 years to start on the opening day of the store. In October
2009, the Company transferred the lease rights and obligations to PT MDS, a Subsidiary. As
required in the term-sheet, PT MDS has made deposit amounting to Rp3,900 as of December 31,
2009, which is presented as part of “Other non-current Assets”. The store has not opened yet as of
December 31, 2009.

z. On September 24, 2009, the Company entered into a binding sales purchase agreement and
transfer of net assets (“Perjanjian Pengikatan Jual Beli dan Pengalihan Aset Bersih or PPJBPA”)
of Matahari Department Store (“MDS”) with PT MDS, which was amended by the First Amendment
of PPJBPA dated October 29, 2009, whereas the Company will sell net assets of MDS division to
PT MDS with selling price and/or a transfer of Rp430,058. This price is based on the Independent
Appraisal Report as of October 19, 2009 for the net assets value of MDS.

The settlement of transaction depends on the fulfillment of several requirements, which include
among others, approval of a majority of Independent Stockholders in General Meeting of Company
Stockholders. This is due to the proposed acquisition must comply with BAPEPAM-LK Regulation
No. IX.E.1 “Affiliated Transactions and Conflict of Interest of Specific Transactions" and Regulation
No. IX.E.2, “Material Transactions and Changes in the Key Business Activities”.

The approval of the proposed transaction as mentioned above have been received from the
Company’s Independent Stockholders at the Extraordinary General Meeting of Company
Stockholders which was held on October 30, 2009, so that on that date the transfer of net assets
of MDS division to PT MDS has been deemed effective. On the same date, PT MDS has issued a
Promissory Note to the Company in the amount of transfer price.

On November 25, 2009, the Promissory Notes was utilized by the Company to execute shares of
PT MDS in the Second Limited Public Offering of PT MDS. The Company’s ownership in PT MDS
is 90.76% of the total issued and fully paid shares (Note 1c). The difference between the amount
of Promissory Notes and value of shares executed by the Company has been received.

aa. In November 2009, the Company entered into an intellectual property utilization agreement
(“Perjanjian Penggunaan Hak Milik Intelektua l”) with PT MDS, a Subsidiary, whereby the Company
agrees to give rights to PT MDS to use the intellectual property of the Company. As compensation,
the Company earned royalty income which is computed at a certain percentage of sales of
PT MDS.

PT MDS has the rights to buy intellectual property rights from the Company. If PT MDS chooses to
execute those rights, then this must be stated in a transfer agreement of Intellectual Property
Rights.

The related reciprocal royalty income and expense amounting to Rp3,547 for the year ended
December 31, 2009 has been eliminated in the consolidated financial statements.
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35. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCY (continued)

COMMITMENTS (continued)

bb. In November 2009, the Company entered into a Service Agreement for Retail Based Information
Technology System with PT MDS, whereby the Company has agreed to supply Information
Technology System service with retail technology basis (“Retail System”) to support all PT MDS’s
business activities.

The agreement covers for a period of 5 years commencing from November 2, 2009. The
agreement has been amended with the new agreement signed in January 2010 (Note 38).

The related reciprocal income and expense from providing services Retail System amounting to
Rp4,446 for the year ended December 31, 2009 has been eliminated in the consolidated financial
statements.

cc. In December 2009, PT MDS, a Subsidiary, entered into a memorandum of understanding for a
lease with PT Basko Minang Plaza covering a store with floor area of 4,820 square meters in
Basko Grand Mall, Padang. The lease period covers 10 years to start on the opening day of the
store. As required in the term-sheet, PT MDS has made rental payment amounting to Rp3,500 as
of December 31, 2009, which is presented as part of “Rental Advances”. The store has not opened
yet as of December 31, 2009.

dd. In December 2009, PT MDS, a Subsidiary, entered into a lease term-sheet with PT Swadaya
Panduartha covering a store with floor area of 8,615 square meters in Mal Artha Gading, Jakarta.
The lease period covers 11 years to start on the opening day of the store. The store has not
opened yet as of December 31, 2009.

ee. In December 2009, PT MDS, a Subsidiary, entered into a lease agreement with PT Rekapastika
Asri covering a store with floor area of 6,646 square meters in Blu Plaza, Bekasi. The lease period
covers 11 years to start on the opening day of the store. As required in the lease agreement,
PT MDS made the rental payment and deposit amounting to Rp2,500 and Rp1,313 as of
December 31, 2009, which are presented as part of “Rental Advances” and “Other Non-current
Assets”, respectively. The store has not opened yet as of December 31, 2009.

ff. As of December 31, 2009, total of the Company’s unused loan facilities is Rp70,000 which
consists of loan facility from PT Bank Permata Tbk.
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35. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCY (continued)

COMMITMENTS (continued)

In relation to the Company’s rent right in the Bogor Internusa Plaza (now Pangrango Plaza) located in
Bogor which was not compensated by PT Bogor Internusa Plaza (“PT BIP”) as developer after the fire
incident in 1996, the Company has filed a legal suit against PT BIP in the Bogor State Court. The state
court has approved a part of the Company’s suit to recover the amounts of Rp101,617 and USD1,441.
In January 2006, PT BIP filed its objection to the decision of the state court in the High Court of
Bandung. The High Court decided that PT BIP should pay compensation for the remaining unused rent
amounting to Rp1,617 and USD1,441 and the Company should pay compensation to PT BIP
amounting to Rp218,484. On March 14, 2007, the Company filed its objection to the decision of the
High Court of Bandung in the Supreme Court. On March 19, 2009, the Bogor State Court has written
an official letter to inform the Company regarding the Supreme Court decision on this matter. The
Supreme Court has decided to revoke the decision of the High Court of Bandung and that PT BIP
should pay compensation for the remaining unused rent amounting to Rp1,617 and USD1,441 plus
interest 12% per annum for the rent amount that denominated in Rupiah and 3% per annum for the
rent amount that denominated in U.S. dollar, using exchange rate (in full amount) of Rp6,000 to USD1
started from the date of legal suit registered in the Bogor State Court (Note 38).

36. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Based on financial information used by the management in evaluating segment performance and
allocating existing resources, the Companies use business segment as the primary segment and
geographical segment as the secondary segment. The Companies classify and evaluate their business
segment in two major reportable segments: Retail Business and Family Entertainment Center.

The operating segments are managed as separate legal entities because each segment offers
different services/products. The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as those
described in the “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies” (Note 2). All inter-segment transactions
have been eliminated.

Major Segments

Family
Retail Entertainment

Business Center Others Segment Total

2009
Sales from Direct Purchase and Other
Trade Revenue

External Sales 8,387,264 289,812 81,643 8,758,719
Consignment Sales 5,022,489 - 5,445 5,027,934
Cost of Consignment Sales 3,502,182 - 4,014 3,506,196

Result
Operating income (loss) 528,721 18,268 (42,716) 504,273
Interest income (expense) and other
financing cost - net (143,574) 1,497 (121,791) (263,868)

Equity in net income of investees - net 1,295 - - 1,295
Income Tax benefit (expense) - net (97,144) 440 19,292 (77,412)
Other income (charges) - net 175,072 (2,462) (40,376) 132,234

Income (loss) before minority interest and
effect of pro forma adjustments 464,370 17,743 (185,591) 296,522

Other Information
Segment assets 10,647,609 170,479 2,808,354 13,626,442
Elimination of inter-segment assets (1,050,694) - (2,015,604) (3,066,298)

Net 9,596,915 170,479 792,750 10,560,144
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36. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Major Segments

Family
Retail Entertainment

Business Center Others Segment Total

2009 (continued)
Segment liabilities 6,827,292 65,751 2,794,374 9,687,417
Elimination of inter-segment liabilities (2,037,086) (1,438) (555,847) (2,594,371)

Net 4,790,206 64,313 2,238,527 7,093,046

Capital expenditures 401,584 47,010 76,597 525,191
Depreciation and amortization 490,752 40,286 18,414 549,452
Net cash provided by (used in):
- Operating activities 1,023,896 40,070 165,980 1,229,946
- Investing activities (1,229,401) (50,808) (151,027) (1,431,236)
- Financing activities 624,280 1,016 85,501 710,797

2008
Sales from Direct Purchase and Other
Trade Revenue

External Sales 7,383,628 313,745 41,112 7,738,485
Consignment Sales 4,238,148 - 737 4,238,885
Cost of Consignment Sales 2,949,176 - 576 2,949,752

Result
Operating income (loss) 462,751 34,011 (5,463) 491,299
Interest income (expense) and other
financing cost - net (90,430) 676 (85,341) (175,095)

Equity in net income (loss) of investees - net 5,618 - (27,806) (22,188)
Income Tax benefit (expense) - net 82,484 (1,398) (6,953) 74,133
Other income (charges) - net (444,258) (20,897) 100,569 (364,586)

Income (loss) before minority interest and
effect of pro forma adjustments 16,165 12,392 (24,994) 3,563

Other Information
Segment assets 9,304,596 165,563 3,162,578 12,632,737
Elimination of inter-segment liabilities (551,271) - (2,280,737) (2,832,008)

Net 8,753,325 165,563 881,841 9,800,729

Segment liabilities 6,254,292 54,278 3,147,896 9,456,466
Elimination of inter-segment liabilities (2,209,764) (555) (596,620) (2,806,939)

Net 4,044,528 53,723 2,551,276 6,649,527

Capital expenditures 491,092 22,220 19,630 532,942
Depreciation and amortization 356,996 46,967 (15,407) 388,556
Net cash provided by (used in):
- Operating activities 707,781 47,769 (2,476) 753,074
- Investing activities (1,908,539) (21,587) (19,981) (1,950,107)
- Financing activities 257,480 (9,831) (72,358) 175,291
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36. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Consolidated information by geographical segment as secondary segment follows:

Major Segments

Retail Business Others Segment Total

2009
Sales from Direct Purchase and Other

Trade Revenue
External Sales:
Jabotabek 3,067,305 157,943 3,225,248
Outside Jabotabek 5,319,959 213,512 5,533,471

Total 8,387,264 371,455 8,758,719

Consignment Sales:
Jabotabek 1,750,369 5,128 1,755,497
Outside Jabotabek 3,272,120 317 3,272,437

Total 5,022,489 5,445 5,027,934

Cost of Consignment Sales:
Jabotabek 1,225,757 3,779 1,229,536
Outside Jabotabek 2,276,425 235 2,276,660

Total 3,502,182 4,014 3,506,196

2008
Sales from Direct Purchase and Other

Trade Revenue
External Sales:
Jabotabek 2,800,183 136,385 2,936,568
Outside Jabotabek 4,583,445 218,472 4,801,917

Total 7,383,628 354,857 7,738,485

Consignment Sales:
Jabotabek 1,448,339 737 1,449,076
Outside Jabotabek 2,789,809 - 2,789,809

Total 4,238,148 737 4,238,885

Cost of Consignment Sales:
Jabotabek 1,014,030 576 1,014,606
Outside Jabotabek 1,935,146 - 1,935,146

Total 2,949,176 576 2,949,752

37. RECENT ECONOMIC CONDITIONS

The operations of the Companies may be affected by future economic conditions in Indonesia that may
contribute to volatility in currency values and negatively impact economic growth. Economic
improvements and sustained recovery are dependent upon several factors, such as fiscal and
monetary actions being undertaken by the Government and others, actions that are beyond the control
of the Companies.
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38. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

a. On January 11, 2010, the Company paid partially the outstanding bank loan from PT Bank
Danamon Indonesia Tbk (“Danamon”) amounting to Rp50,000 and on January 21, 2010, the
Company paid the remain outstanding bank loan amounting to Rp185,000. On February 25, 2010,
the Company drew down all of the loan facility from Danamon amounting to Rp235,000 which was
fully repaid on March 4, 2010 (Note 20).

b. On January 12, 2010, the Company fully repaid the outstanding bank loan from PT Bank Mizuho
Indonesia amounting to Rp200,000 (Note 20).

c. On January 13, 2010, PT Matahari Department Store Tbk (“PT MDS”), a Subsidiary, has signed a
Binding Sales Purchase Agreement to transfer all of the stock ownership in PT Asri Agungpermai
(“PT AAP”) at the selling price of Rp12.50.

On February 17, 2010, the transfer process of the stock ownership in PT AAP had been
completed.

d. On January 14, 2010, the Company obtained a revolving working capital loan facility amounting to
USD30,000 from Bank of China Limited, Jakarta Branch. The loan facility is available up to
January 14, 2012.

e. On January 18, 2010, the Company has received submission notice of memory for judicial review
on the Supreme Court's decision in connection with lease rights in Bogor Internusa Plaza.
Furthermore, the Company will propose and apply a contra memory for judicial review (Note 35).

f. On January 22, 2010, the Company has signed an amendment for Service Agreement for Retail
Based Information Technology System with PT MDS, which revise the agreement that has been
signed in November 2009 (Note 35).

g. On January 23, 2010, the Company and Meadow Asia Company Limited (“MAC”), a subsidiary of
CVC Capital Partners (“CVC”), have signed a binding Sale and Purchase Agreement (“SPA”) in
relation to, among other, the plan to sell a total of 2,648,220,000 series C shares of PT MDS,
owned by Company, which represent 90.76% of total shares issued and fully paid in PT MDS, with
the selling price of Rp2,705.33 (in full amount) per share, to MAC or a subsidiary of MAC.

In addition, on the same date, the Company, MAC and Meadow Asia Holdings Limited, a
subsidiary of CVC, have signed a Shareholders' Agreement (“SHA”) in connection with, among
other, the arrangements in managing MAC and its subsidiaries.

On February 2, 2010, the Company has published Disclosure of Information to Stockholders
regarding the Proposed Transaction that has been arranged in the SPA and SHA. Then, on
March 23, 2010, the Company has published Additional and/or Revision of Disclosure of
Information.

On February 25, 2010, the Company has signed Seller SPV Nomination Letter in connection with
the appointment of the Company to PT Matahari Pacific, a wholly-owned subsidiary, to act as the
party that receive the stocks and warrants that will be issued by MAC and as the party that give
receivable to PT Meadow Indonesia (a subsidiary of MAC, which was appointed as buyer) based
on Seller Loan Agreement as arranged in the SPA.

To fulfill the request of BAPEPAM-LK, on March 5, 2010, the Company has presented a public
expose in regard with the Proposed Transaction.
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38. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (continued)

The approval for the Proposed Transaction has been obtained from independent stockholder at
the Company’s Stockholders Extraordinary Meeting, which was held on March 26, 2010.

h. On March 25, 2010, the Company fully repaid the outstanding bank loan from PT Bank Permata
Tbk (Note 20).

i. On March 26, 2010, the exchange rates (in full amounts) were Rp9,136 to USD1 and Rp6,497 to
SGD1 while on December 31, 2009, the rates were Rp9,400 to USD1 and Rp6,699 to SGD1. On
the basis of the rates on March 26, 2010, the Company recognized foreign exchange gain
amounting to approximately Rp40,062 on its net foreign currency liabilities as of December 31,
2009.

39. REVISED PSAK

The Financial Accounting Standard Board - Indonesian Institute of Accountants has issued the
following revised financial accounting standards which might has an impact on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements as follows:

1. Applicable for the financial statements covering periods beginning on or after January 1, 2010:
� PSAK 50 (Revised 2006) : Financial Instruments: Presentation and Disclosure
� PSAK 55 (Revised 2006) : Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
� PSAK 26 (Revised 2008) : Borrowing Cost

2. Applicable for the financial statements covering periods beginning on or after January 1, 2011:
� PSAK 1 (Revised 2009): Presentation of Financial Statements
� PSAK 2 (Revised 2009): Statement of Cash Flows
� PSAK 4 (Revised 2009): Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
� PSAK 5 (Revised 2009): Operating Segments
� PSAK 12 (Revised 2009): Interests in Joint Ventures
� PSAK 15 (Revised 2009): Investment in Associates
� PSAK 25 (Revised 2009): Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates, and Errors
� PSAK 48 (Revised 2009): Impairments of Assets
� PSAK 57 (Revised 2009): Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, and Contingent Assets
� PSAK 58 (Revised 2009): Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations

The Companies have not adopted early any of these PSAKs. The Companies are currently evaluating
them and have not yet determined the related effects on the consolidated financial statements.

40. COMPLETION OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of the Company is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that were completed on March 26, 2010.


